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TO: ALL STOCKHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the annual meeting of the stockholders of Premium Leisure Corp. shall be
on 27 April 2015, Monday, at 4:00 in the afternoon, SMX Convention Center, Seashell Lane, Mall of Asia
Complex, Pasay City to consider the following:

AGENDA

Call to Order

Proof of Notice of Meeting

Certification of Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Stockholders
Approval of 2014 Operations and Results

Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors and Officers
Election of Directors

Appointment of SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. as External Auditors
Other Matters

0. Adjournment

e NOO LN

The close of business on 27 March 2015 has been fixed as the record date for the determination of the
stockholders entitled to notice of and vote at said meeting and any adjournment thereof.

Registration for those who are personally attending the meeting will start at 3:00 P.M. and end promptly at
4:00 P.M. All stockholders who will not, are unable, or do not expect to attend the meeting in person are
encouraged to fill out, date, sign and send a proxy to the Corporation at 5th Floor, Tower A, Two E-Com
Center, Palm Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City. All proxies should be received by the
Corporation at least three (3) days before the meeting, or on or before 24 April 2015. Proxies submitted
shall be validated by a Committee of Inspectors on 25 April 2015 at 10:00 A.M. at the 5th Floor, Tower A,
Two E-Com Center, Palm Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City. For corporate stockholders,
the proxies should be accompanied by a Secretary's Certification on the appointment of the corporation’s
authorized signatory.

To avoid inconvenience in registering your attendance at the meeting, you or your proxy is requested to
bring identification paper(s) containing a photograph and signature, e.g. passport, driver's license, or

credit card.
/A.BAYT\;(?

Corporate Secretqﬂl

City of Pasay, Metro Manila, 1 April 2015.

5™ Floor, Tower A, Two E-Com Center, Palm Coast Ave., Mall of Asia Complex, CBP 1-A, Pasay City *Tel. No. 662-8803 / Fax No, 662-8898
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SEC FORM 20-1S -~ A

Information Statement Pursuant to Section 20
of the Securities Regulation Code

1. Check the appropriate box
[ ] Preliminary Information Statement
[X] Definitive Information Statement

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: PREMIUM LEISURE CORP.

3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or crganization:;
Philippines

4, SEC identification Number: AS093-009289
5. BIR Tax Identification Number; 003-457-827

6. Address of principal office and Postal Code:
5th Floor, Tower A, Two E-Com Center, Palm Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City

7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (632) 662-8888

8. Date, time, and place of the meeting of security holders:

Date : 27 April 2015 (Monday)
Time : 4:00 P.M.
Venue : SMX Convention Center, Seashell Lane, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is to be sent or given to security holders:
1 April 2015

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
{information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Cutstanding
Common Stock 31,627,310,000 (As of 28 February 2015)

11. Are any or all of Registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Common Shares Yes[X] No[ ]
Preferred Shares Yes[ ] No [ X]

If so disclose name of the Exchange: The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED
NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.



GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders

(a) Date - 27 April 2015 {Monday)
Time - 4:00 P.M.
Place - SMX Convention Center, Seashell Lane, Mall of Asia

Complex, Pasay City, Metro Manila

The approximate date on which the Information Statement will be sent or given o
security holders is on 1 April 2015.

()] The complete maiting address of the principal office of Premium Leisure Corp. {("the
Company”) is:

5th Floor, Tower A, Two E-Com Center, Palm Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex,
Pasay City

Item 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

The matters to be voted upen in the Annual Siockholders’ Meeting on 27 April 2015 are not
among the instances enumerated in Section 42 and 81, Title X of the Corporation Code whereby
the right of appraisal, defined to be the right of any stockholder to dissent and demand payment
of the fair value of his shares, may be exercised. The instances where the right of appraisal may
be exercised are as follows:

4. In case ahy amendment {o the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in
any respect superior to those outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening
the term of corporate existence;

2 In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets as provided in the Corporation Code;

3. |n case the Company decides to invest its funds in another corparation or business outside
of its primary purpose; and

4. In case of merger or consolidation.

in case the right of appraisal will be exercised, Section 82 of the Corporation Code provides for
the appropriate procedure, viz:

The appraisal right may be exercised by any steckholder who shall have voted against
the proposed corporate action, by making a writien demand on the corporation within
thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken for payment of the fair value of
his shares: Provided, That failure to make the demand within such peried shall be
deemed a waiver of the appraisal right. if the proposed corporate action is implemented
or affected. the corporation shall pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of the
certificate(s) of stock representing his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day prior to
the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in
anticipation of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (80) days from the date the corporate action was approved by
ihe stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the
fair value of the shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three {3) disinterested
persons, one of whom shall be named by the stockhoider, another by the corporation and
the third by the two thus chosen. The findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be

3



final, and their award shall be paid by the corporation within thirty {30) days after such
award is made: Provided, That no payment shall be made to any dissenting stockholder
unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment; and Provided, further, That upon payment by the corporation of the agreed or
awarded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to the corporation.

ltem 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters io be Acted Upon

(a) No person who has been a director or officer or a nominee for election as director of the
Company or associate of such persons, has a substantial interest, direct or indirect, in
any matter to be acied upen other than the election of directors for the year 2015-2016.

{b) The Company is not aware of any director or security holder who intends to oppose any
action to be taken by the Registrant during the stockholders' meeting.

e CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
()
ltem 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) As of 28 February 2015, the Registrant had 31,627,310,000 common shares outstanding
and each share is entitled to one vote. As of 28 February 2015, out of the outstanding
capital stock of the Corporation, 1,544,287,673 common shares or 4.88% is owned by

foreigners.

(b) The record date with respect to the determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of
and vote at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting is'27 April 2015.

(c) With respect to the election of directors of seven (7) directors, each stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many as seven (7) persons he may choose to be elected from
the list of nominees, or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes
as the number of his shares multiplied by seven (7) shall equal, or he may distribute them on
the same principle among as many candidates as he shali see fit, provided that the total
number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him multiplied

' by seven (7).

(d) Security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners and management.
a. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners
The persons or groups identified in the table below are known to the Company as directly

or indirectly the record or beneficial owners of more than five percent (5%) of the
Company's voting securities as of February 28, 2015:

Name and Address
Title of htljmzragg dAgg::;snth?e&g{g of Beneficial Owner | Citizen- No. of Shares Percent
Class leovior P and Retationship ship Held
with Record Owner
Common Belle Corporation * Beile Corporation Filipino 24,700,000,004 | 78.097
5/F Tower A, Two E-Com Center
Palm Coast Ave., Mall of Asia
Complex, CPB-1A Pasay City (8}
Commen PCD Nominee Corp. (Filipino} ** (please see foolnote) Filipino 3,890,758,906 | 12.302
G/F Makati Stock Exchange,




[ 6767 Ayala Avenue, Makati City (b) i i |

| J

The shares held by Belle Corporation, being a corporate shareholder,

shall be voted or disposed of, by the persons who shall be duly authotiz
the purpose. The natural person/s that has/have the power to vote on the

ed by Belle for
shares of Belle

shall be determined upon the submission of its proxy form to the Company, which is not

later than three (3) days before the date of the meeting.

PCD Nominee Corporation (‘PCONC") is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ph

ilippine Ceniral

Depository, Inc. ("PCD"). The beneficial owners of such shares registered under the
name of PCDNC are PCD's participants who hold the shares in their own behalf or in
behalf of their clients. The PCD is prohibited from voting these shares; instead the

participants have the power to decide how the PCD shares in Premiure Le

isure Corp. are

to be voted. As of February 28, 2015, there are no participants of PCD who own more

than 5% of the Company's outstanding capital.

As of 28 February 2015, 1,544,287,673 Common Shares of the Company are owned by
non-Filipinos, constituting 4.88% of the Company’s outstanding capital stock.

b, Security Ownership of Management

The following table shows the shares beneficially owned by the directors and ex
of the Company as of 28 February 2015:

ecutive officers

Amount* and
Title Name of Beneficial Owner Naturfe ?f Citizenship Percent
of Beneficial
Class Ownership
Commen Willy N. Ocier 16,888,001 Direct Filipino 0.053%
Common Frederic C. DyBuncio 1 Direct Filipino 0%
Cammon A. Bayani K. Tan 2 Direct Fiiipino 0%
Common Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr. 1 Direct Filipino 0%
Common Joseph C. Tan 1 Direct Filipino 0%
Common Juan Victor S. Tanjuatco 1 Direct Filipino 0%
Common Roman Felipe S. Reyes 1 Direct Filipino 0%
Common Armin Raquel-Santos 0 Filipino 0%
Common Jackson Ongsip 0 Filipino 0%
Common Dexter Reyes 0 Filipino 0%
Common Arthur Sy 20,000 Direct Filipino 0.0001%

*Number of shares
(3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More
The Company is not aware of any party which holds any voting trust

agreement for 5% or more of Premium Leisure Corp.'s voting secuities.

Changes in Control

On 2 June 2014, the Company's Board of Directors approved to take on the gamin

or any similar

g business and

interests of the Belle Group. The transaction involved the sale to Belle of PLC's non-gaming
assets (comprising primarily real properties and corporate club membership shares) and
acquisition of all of Belle's interest in PremiumLeisure and Amusement, Inc. (PLAI) and 34.5%

interest in Pacific Online Systems Cerporation (POSC). The transfers of the sa

id assets were



completed on 24 July 2014. As part of the consideration for the transfer of assets, PLC undertook
to increase its authorized capital stock, and out of such increass, Belle agreed to subscribe to
new shares to increase its stake in the Company to 90% of the outstanding capital.

As a result of the transactions, the Company directly owns 100% of PLAI and 34.5% of POSC. In
turn, the Company is 78.86% owned and controlled by Belle, together with its
affiliates/subsidiaries APC Group, Inc., Foundation Capital Resources, Inc. and Paraliax
Resources, Inc. Subsequently, Belle together with other principal shareholders agreed to offer an
amount of shares for sale as a result of which, its shareholdings was reduced to 24,700,000,000
common shares representing 78.1% of PLC's outstanding shares.

item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Directors and Executive Officers

The names and ages of all the incumbent Directors, elected on 18 July 2014 during the Annual
Stockholders' Meeting and who are to serve for a term of one (1) year until their successor shall
have been duly elected and qualified, and the Executive Officers are.

Name Citizenship Age  Pasifion Period Served
Willy N. Ocier Fitipino 58 Chairman of the Board B/25/99 - present
Frederic C. DyBuncio Filipinc 55 President and CEO 4123112 - present
A. Bayani K. Tan Filipino 59 Director & Corporate Secretary 6/23/98 - present
Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr.  Filipino 68 Directar 7/18/14 - present
Joseph C. Tan Filipino 57 independent Director 7/18/14 - present
Juan Victor S. Tanjuatco  Filipino 67 Independent Director 7/18/14 - present
Roman Felipe S. Reyes  Filipino 63 Independent Director 7118114 - present
Arthur Al Sy Filipino 45 Asst. Corporate Sec. : 7/19/11 — present
Jackson T. Ongsip Filipino 41 Chief Finance Officer 412312 - present
Armin Raguei-Santos Filipino 47 EVP & COO 711812014 - present
Dexter Reyes Filipino 41 Controller 7/18/2014 - present

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following are brief descriptions of the business experiences over the past five (5) years of the
incumbent members of the Board.

All of the incumbent members of the Board have been nominated for re-election by the
Nomination Committee.

Willy N. Ocier

Mr. Ocier is the Chairman of the Board and Director of Premium Leisure Corp. same with APC
Group, Inc., and Premium Leisure and Amusement, Inc. He is one of the Co-Vice Chairman of
Belle Corporation since June 1999. He is also the Vice Chairman of Highlands Prime, Inc. and
Tagaytay Highiands international Golf Club, Inc. He is the Chairmar, Chief Executive Officer and
President of Philippine Global Communications, inc. and likewise the Chairman and President of
Pacific Online Systems Corporation. He is also the Chairman of Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club,
Inc., The Country Club at Tagaytay Highiands, Inc. and The Spa and Lodge Inc. He sits as
Director of Leisure and Resorts World Corporation, Vantage Equities, and Toyota Corpaoration
Batangas. He was the former President and Chief Operating Officer of Eastern Securities
Development Corporation. He graduated from Ateneo de Manila University with a Bachelor of

Arts degree in Economics.

Frederic C. DyBuncio
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Mr. DyBuncic is the President, Chief Executive Officer and Director of Premium Leisure Gorp,
Belle Corporation and APC Group, Inc. He is the Vice Chairman and Director of Atlas
Consolidated Mining and Development Corporation, and a Director of Pacific Online Systems
Corporation.  Concurrently, he is the Senior Vice President of Investiments Portfolio of SM
Investments Carporation. Prior to holding the post, he was a career banker who spent over 20
years with JP Morgan Chase and its predecessor institutions where ne worked and lived in
several major cities including New York, Seoul, Bangkok, Hong Kong and Manila. He graduated
from Ateneo de Manita University with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management
and finished a Master's degree in Business Administration program at Asian institute of

Management.
A. Bayani K. Tan

Mr. Tan has been a Director and the Corporate Secretary of the Corporation since December
1993. He is also currently & Director, Corporaie Secretary or both of the following reporting
and/for listed companies: Asia United Bank Corporation (February 2014 as Corporate Secretary”
and June 2014 as Director*), Belle Corporation (May 1994-present), Coal Asia Holdings, Inc.
(Juty 2012-present), Destiny Financial Plans, Inc. (2003-present), Discovery World Corporation
(March 2013 as Director, July 2003-present as Corporate Secretary), First Abacus Financial
Holdings Corp.(May 1994-present), |-Remit, inc. (May 2007-present), Pacific Oniine Systems
Corporation (May 2007-present), Philequity Balanced Fund, inc. (March 2010-present), Philequity
Dividend Yield Fund, Inc. (January 2013-present), Philequity Dollar income Fund, Inc. (March
1999-present), Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income Fund, Inc. (March 2010-present),
Philequity Fund, Inc. (June 1997-present), Philequity Peso Bond Fund, Inc. (June 2000-present),
Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc. (Febiuary 1999- present), Philequity Resources Fund, Inc.
(March 2010-present), Philequity Strategic Growth Fund, Inc. (April 2008-present), Tagaytay
Highlands International Golf Club, Inc. (November 1993-present), Tagaytay Midlands Goli Club,
Inc. {June 1997- present), The Couniry Club at Tagaytay Highlands, tnc. (August 1995-present),
The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands, inc. (December 1999-present), TKC Steel
Corporation (February 2007-present), Vantage Equities, Inc. (January 1993-present) and Yehey!
Corporation (June 2004-present). Mr. Tan is also the Corporate Secretary of Sterling Bank of
Asia Inc. since December 2006. Mr. Tan is the Managing Partner of the law offices of Tan
Venturanza Valdez (1988 fo present), Managing Director/President of Shamrock Development
Corporation (May 1988-present}, Director of Destiny LendFund, Inc. (December 2005-present)
and Pascual Laboraiories, inc. (March 2014), President of Catarman Chamber Elementary
School Foundation, Inc. {August 2012-present}, Managing Trustee of SCTan Foundation, Inc.
(1986-present), Trustee and Treasurer of Rebisco Foundation, inc. (April 2013-present) and
Trustee and Corporate Secretary of St. Scholastica's Hospital, inc. (February 2011-present). He
is currently the legal counsel of Xavier School, Inc.

Mr. Tan holds a Master of Laws degree from New York University (Class of 1988) and earned his
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (Class of 1980) where he was a
member of the Order of the Purple Feather (U.P. College of Law Honor Society) and ranked ninth
in his class. Mr. Tan passed the bar examinations in 1981 where he placed sixth. He has a
Bacheior of Aris major in Political Science degree from the San Beda College (Class of 1976)
from whare he graduated Class Valedictorian and was awarded the medal for Academic

Excelience.

Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr

Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr. is an elected Director of BDO Leasing and Finance, inc. He was
previously director of Equitable PCl Bank, Inc. from 2005 to 2006, and EBC Insurance
Brokerage, Inc., and Maxicare Healthcare Corporation. He was formerly the
Chairman of EBC  Strategic Holdings Corporation, EBC [nvestments, Inc.
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{now BDO Strategic Holdings Inc.), Jardine
Equitable Finance Corporation, Strategic Property Holdings, Inc., PCIB Properties, Inc.,
Eguitable Data Center, inc. and PC] Automation Center, Inc. He was previously President and
CEO of Banco De Oro Universal Bank and TA Bank of the Philippines, and was Vice President of
Private Development Corporation of the Philippines (PDCP). He was Senior
adviser and BSP Controller of Equitable PCI Bank, Inc. and PBCom; and Adviser to the Board of

PCI Capital Corporation.
Joseph C. Tan

Atty. Joseph C. Tan is the Founding Partner of MOST LAW from September 20086 to present. He
was a Special Counsel for Agus Cruz & Manzano Law Office from 2004 to August 2006. He was

an Associate of Puno & Puno Law Offices from 1981 to 1995.

Atty. Tan is a director of San Carlos Bionergy Corporation. He was also a director of Philippine
Bank of Communications from September 2010 to August 2014. He is a Consultant Chairman of

UCPB.

Afty. Tan holds a Bachelor of Arts with a Major in Business Administration degree from University
of San Francisco, USA (Class of 1978). He aiso holds 2 Bachelor of Laws degree from the
Ateneo de Manila Coliege of Law, Makati City, graduating with honors (Class of 1985).

Juan Victor S. Tanjuatco

Juan Victor S. Tanjuatco is an Independent Director of IP E-Games Ventures inc., IP Ventures
Inc. and a Director of Ketmar Fast food Corporation. He was also a former Independent Director
of Insular Savings Bank and Asiatrust Development Bank. He was also the Executive Vice
President from 2006-2009 ‘and became the President from 2009-2012 of Export and Indusiry

Bank.

Mr. Tanjuatco worked for 21 years at Credit Agricole Indosuez from 1977 to 1998 and retired as
Deputy General Manager in Manila. He was assigned to various manageriallexecutive positions
where he gained his expertise in the banking industry. He has worked in major cities including
Philadelphia, USA with |IBM Corporation, in New Zealand with Indosuez New Zealand Limited and
Hong Kong with Credit Agricole Indoseuz.

Mr. Tanjuatco holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from The Ateneo de Manila
University (cum laude) and he is a hoider of a Masters Degree in Business Administration in
Finance from The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania

Roman Felipe S. Reyes

Mr. Reyes, a Certified Public Accountant, is the Chairman of Reyes Tacandong & Co., and a
member of the GS!S Board of Trusiees since 2010. He serves as an Independent Director of
Macawiwiii Gotd Mining And Development Ce., Inc., Pakistan international Container Terminal
Limited, Premium Leisure Corporation, Bank of Commerce, RPN 9, Philippine Geothermal
Production Company, Pasudeco, All Asian Countertrade, National Reinsurance Corporation of
the Philippines, and Rockwell Leisure Club. He is also a current Trustee of San Beda College,
San Beda Alumni Association Foundation, and the Chairman of the Board of Governors of
Nicanor Reyes Memorial Foundation. He was a Senior Partner and the Vice Chairman for Client
Services and Accounts of SGV & Co. from 1984-2009, and the President of Knowledge Institute
in 2009. Mr. Reyes earned his Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce, major in Accounting,
from San Beda College in 1972, and obtained his MBA degree in Finance from the University of

Detroit in 1975.



Independent Directors

The nomination, pre-screening and election of independent directors were made in compliance
with the requirements of the Code of Gorporate Governance and the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s Guidelines on the Nomination and Election of Independent Directors which have
been adopted and made part of the Corporation's By-Laws.

The Nomination Committee constituted by the Company's Board of Directors, indarsed the
nominations for re-election as independent directors given in favor of Messrs. Joseph C. Tan (by
Mr. Frederic C. DyBuncio), Juan Victor S. Tanjuatco (by Mr. Arthur A. Sy), and Mr. Roman Felipe
S. Reyes (by Mr. Willy N. Ocier). The Nomination Committee, composed of Frederic C. Dybuncio
(Chairmany, Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr., and Joseph C. Tan, has determined that these nominees
for independent directors possess ali the qualifications and have none of the disqualifications for
independent directors as set forth in the Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance and Rule
38 of the Implementing Rules of the Securities Regulation Code (SRC).

The nominees, whose required information are discussed above, are in no way related to the

siockhoiders who nominated them and have signified their acceptance of the nominations. These
nominees are expected to atiend the scheduled Annual Stockhoiders’ Meeting.

Other Executive Qfficers

Armin B. Raqueil-Sanios
Mr. Raquel-Santos is currently the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of PLC.

‘He is Executive Vice President — Integrated Resorts of Belle Corporation, Executive Vice

President of PremiumLeisure and Amusement Inc..Director of Tagaytay Highlands international
Golf Club, Inc. and Trustee, Melco Crown Philippines Foundation Corporation. He was former
Chief Finance Officer of Aboitizland, Inc., Cebu industrial Park, Inc. and Mactan Economic Zone
Il. His experience include stints with multinational companies such as Securities 2000 Inc.
(Singapore Tecnologies Group) and First Chicago Trust Company of New York. He holds a
Master of Arts in Liberal Studies from Dartmouth College, U.S.A. and Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration Major in Finance from lona College, U.S.A

Jackson T. Ongsip

Mr. Ongsip is the Vice President for Finance and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He
graduated from the University of Santo Tomas with a Bachelor of Science in Accountancy. He is
a Certified Public Accountant. He is currently an Assistant Vice President- Portfolio Investments
of SM Investments Corporation. He is also the Executive Vice President and Chief Finance
Officer of APC Group, Inc., an affiliate of Premium Leisure Corp.

Dexter C. Reyes

Mr. Reyes is the Controller of the Company and Assistant Vice President for Accounting and
Internal Audit of PremiumLeisure and Amusement Inc. He has over 15 years of experience in the
hotel and integrated resort business, and he specialized in auditing hotel and gaming operations.
He was former Senior Manager at EDSA Shangri-la and Thunderbird Resorts, Inc. and has
experience in opening casinos in Lodz, Poland and Daman India.

Arthur Sy
Mr. Sy is the Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company. He is the Vice President of
Corporate Legal Affairs at SM Investments Corporation, and is the Corporate Secretary of various

9
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major corporations within the SM Group of Companies. He is also the Corporate Secretary of
National University. A member of the New York Bar, Mr. Sy holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Philosophy from the University of Santo Tomas and a Juris Doctor degree from the Ateneo de

Manita University;
Significant Employees

There are no other significant employees.

Family Relationships

No director andfor executive officer of Premium Leisure Corp. are related up to the fourth degree
by affinity or consanguinity.

involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

As a result of the delay in the delivery of the facilities of the Universal Leisure Ciup, inc., some of
its members initiated a Complaint for Estafa {1.S. No. DBK-89713) against ULC, the Universal
Rightfield Property Holdings, Inc. and the Universal Leisure Corp., as well as their respective
officers and directors, including their former Corporate Secretary, Atty. A. Bayani K. Tan, the
incumbent Corporate Secretary of the Corporation. The Complaint was submitted for resolution in
2009 and was acted upon and dismissed by the City Prosecutor of Manita (OCP) only on March
18, 2013. Complainants belatedly filed motion for reconsideration for which reason, among
others, the OCP denied motion on June 16, 2014, A Petition for Review was filed by the
Complainant before the Department of Justice (DOJ). The petition remains unresolived to date.

Except as provided above, the Corporation is not aware of any of the following events wherein
any of ifs directors, nominees for election as director, executive officers, underwriter or conirol

person were involved during the past five (6) years!

(a) Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which any of the Corporation's
directors or officers was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the
bankruptcy or within two (2) years prior to that time;

(5) Any conviction by final judgment, in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign.

(c) Any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of
any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending of otherwise limiting the involvement of any of the above
persons in any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities; and,

(d) Any finding by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in civil action}, the
SEC or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic
marketplace or self-regulatory organization, that any of the above persons has violated a
securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or

vacated.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

No director or executive officer or any member of their immediate family has, during the last two
years, had a direct or indirect, material interest in a transaction or proposed transaction to which

the Company was a party.
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As summarized and disclosed in the corporation's consolidated financial statements, in the
ordinary course of business, the Company has transactions with related parties which consist
mainly of extension or avaiiment of noninterest-bearing advances to Belle Corporafion and Belle
Bay City. The Company’s advances for Belle Bay City, a company currently in liquidation, were in
payment for cash calls made by the latter to cover payment of real estate taxes and other costs
relating to the Company’s prospective share in the remaining assets of Belle Bay City; while the
advances for Belle Corporation was a result of an off-setting arrangement among the Company,
Belle Corporation and the iessor of Belle Corporation's offices. The outstanding balances at year-
end are due and demandable. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any
related party receivables or payables. Aside from these transactions, the Company has no other
significant transactions that need to be disclosed.

The related party transactions are described in Note 15 (Related Party Transactions) of the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Disagreement with Director

No director has resigned nor declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the
date of the iast annual meeting of stockholders because of a disagreement with the Company on
any matter relating to the latter's operations, policies, or practices.

ltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Summary of Annual Compensation

(a) Name and Principal Pasition by Year | (c) Salary {d) Bonus (F) (e} Other

(™) Annuat
Compensat
ion

Willy N. Ocier, Chairman of the Board
Frederic C. Dybuncio, President and
CEQ

Jackson T. Ongsip CFO

A. Bayani K. Tan, Corporate Secretary
Arthur  A. Sy, Assistant Corporate
Secretary

Armin Raquel-Santos, EVP and COO
Dexter Reyes, Confroller

Al officers and directors 2s a Group [ 20157 8,221,236 - 640,000
{Unnamed) 2014* 8,244,018 - 754,638
2093 1,171,236 - 161,607

* Compensation based on estimates only
* Armin Raquel-Santos and Dexter Reyes only became officers as of 18 July 2014
= Armin Raquel-Santos and Dexter Reyes were not yet officers in 2013.

Except as provided above, there are no other officers of the Company receiving
compensation.

Compensation of Directors

All independent directors get a per diem of 250,000.00 each while other directors get a per
diem of 210,000.00 each per meeting.

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change in Control
Arrangements
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There was no compensatory plan or arrangement with respect to named executive officers
that resulted or will resuli from the resignation, retiremant or termination of such executive
officer or from a change-in-control in the Company.

Warrants and Options Outstanding

None.
Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

(a) The Company's external auditors for 2014-2015, SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co. {SGV) and
the partner-in-charge Ms. Marydith C. Miguel, will be recommended for re-
appointment as such for the curreni year subject to the rotation of audit partner
reguirement.

(b) Representatives of SGV are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting to
respond to appropriate guestions and will be given the opportunity to make a
statement if they so desire.

{c) There was no event in the past five {5) years where SGV and the Company had any
disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices,
financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.

(d) In compliance with SRC Rule 68 3 (b) (iv), the assignment of SGV's engagement
partner for the Company shall not exceed five (5) consecutive years.

(&) The aggregate fees paid by the Company for professional services (including Value
Added Tax) rendered by the external auditor for the audit of financial statements for
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

{2000's omitted)
2014 R380
2013 R342

There were no other assurance and related services by the external auditor that are
reasonably related fo the performance of the audit or review of the registrant's
financial statements. The rotation of independent auditors and the two-year cooling
off period has been observed in the audit of the Company's financial statements.

H The Audit Committee, composed of Roman Felipe S. Reyes (Chairman), Juan Victor
S. Tanjuatco and Exequiel P. Villacorta, Jr., recommends to the Board of Directors
tne appointment of the external auditors. The Board of Directors and the stockholders
approve the Audit Committee’s recommendation. The Executive Committee approves
the audit fees as recommended by the Management Committee.

OTHER MATTERS

ltem 15. Action with Respect to Reports

The Company will seek the approval by the stockholders of the Minutes of the 18 July 2014
Stockholders' Meeting during which the following matters were taken up: {1) Call to Order, (2}
Proof of Notice of Meeting, {3) Certification of Quorum, (4) Approval of the Minutes of the
Previous Stockholders Meeting, (5) Approval of 2014 Operations and Resulis, (6) Ratification
or all Acts of the Board of Directors and Officers (7) Election of Directors, (8) the Appointment
of SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. as External Auditors, (9) Other Matters and (10} Adjournment.

The Company will also seek approval by the stockhoiders of the 2014 Operations and
Reports contained and discussed in the annual report attached and made part of this
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Information Statement. Approval of the reports will constitute approval and ratification of the
acts of management and of the Board of Directors for the past year.

ltern 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

No action is to be taken with respect to any matter which is not required to be submitted to a vote
of security holders.
item 17. Amendment of Articles of Incorporation

The Carporation will not be seeking approval of amendments.

ltem 18. Other Proposed Actions

The following are to be proposed for approval during the stockholders’ meeting:

Dok wN

Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Stockholders

2014 Operations and Results

Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors and QOfficers
Election of Directors for 2015-2016

Appointment of SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. as Exiernal Auditors
Other Matters

Item 19. Voting Procedures

(@)

The amendment of the Articles of Incorporation requires the vote of two-thirds (2/3) of
the Company's outstanding capital stock while other actions to be taken at the
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting shall reguire the vote of the stockholders representing
at least a majority of the Company's outstanding capital stock.

Two inspectors, who shall be officers or employees of the Corporation, shall be
appointed by the Board of Directors before or at each meeting of the stockholders, at
which an election of directors shall iake place; if no such appointment shall have
been made or if the inspectors appointed by the Board of Directors refused to act or
fail to attend then the appointment shall be made by the presiding officer of the
meeting.

Stockholders may vote at all meetings either in person or by proxy duly given in
writing in favor of any person of their confidence and each stockholder shall he
entitied to one vote for each share of stock standing in his name in the books of the
corporation; provided, however, that in the election of Directors, each stockholder
shall be entitled to cumulate his votes in the manner provided for by law.

The By-Laws of the Company is silent as to the method by which votes are {0 be
counted. in practice, however, the same is done by the raising of hands or viva voce.
With respect to the election of seven (7) directors, each stocknolder may vote such
number of shares for as many as seven (7} persons he may choose to be elected
fror the list of nominees, or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as
many votes as the number of his shares multiplied by seven (7) shall equal, or he
may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit, provided that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the
number of shares owned by him multiplied by seven (7).

Upon confirmation by the inspectors that there is a mathematical impossibility for
certain nominees to be elected into office based on proxies held and voies
present/represented in the meeting, the actual casting and counting of votes for the
election of Directors may be dispensed with.
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Omitted ltems

iterns 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 14 are not responded to in this report, the Com
intention to take any action with respect o the information required therein.

pany having no
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SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | hereby certify that the
information set forth in this report is irue, complete and correct.

This report is signed in the City of Pasay, Metro Manila on ‘4z0March 2015,
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

PREMIUM LEISURE CORP.
BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Background

Premium Leisure Corp. formerly Sinophil Corporation (“PLC" or the “Company") was incorporated
as Sinophil Exploration Go., Inc. on November 26, 1893, PLC was organized with oil and gas
exploration and development as its primary purpose. The Company and other companies
{Contractors), were participants in several Geophysical Survey and Exploration Contracts and
Non-Exclusive Geophysical Permits entered into with the Philippine Government, through the
Department of Energy, covering certain petroleum contract areas in various locations. It also had
passive equity investments in Dragon Oil Pl (Dragon Qil) and Sinoil Asia Limited (Sinail). In
19986, with investor interest in oil exploration and mining companies remaining generally soft, the
Company's management recommended conversion of PLC from an oil exploration company to an
investment holding company. In fine with the Company's dgecision to change its primary purpose,
the Company assigned its interests in Dragon Oil and Sinoil to Belle Corporation (“Belle”) and/or
its subsidiaries. To finance the Company's projects, acquisitions and investments in 1997,
private placemenis of PLC's shares were made to several investors, both in the country and

overseas.

On June 3, 1997, the Securities and £xchange Commission (SEC) approved the Company's
application for a change in primary purposes from oil and gas exploration and development to
being an investment holding company. As an investment holding firm, it shall engage in the
acquisition (by purchase, exchange, assignment or otherwise), ownership and use for investment
any and all properties and other assets of every kind and description.

On June 2, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a plan to take on the gaming
business and interests of Belle Corporation (the “Investment Plan*). in line with this, the
Company was authorized:

a. To sell to Belle its non-gaming related assets consisting of the foliowing:

Membership shares in Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, inc.

« A lot with gross area of 4,348 square meters located within the Aseana Business Park at
the Manila Bay Reclamation Area.

Several parceis of fand in The parks at Saratoga Hills within the Tagaytay Midlands
Complex.

Undeveloped land located in the City of Tanauan, Province of Batangas.

b. To acquire from Belle the following:

« 100% ownership interest in Premiumleisure and Amusement, Inc. {“PLAI") for a
consideration of B10,847.8 million; and

« 34.5% ownership interest in Pacific Online Systems Corporation ("POSC") for a
consideration of R1,525.0 million.

On July 24, 2014, the transfer of the above assets were completed.
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c. To execute a Memorandum of Agreement (Second Amendment Agreement to the
Settlement Agreement dated August 28, 2009) for the redemption of 1,000,000,000
preferred shares by Belle for a cash consideration of E1,000.0 mitlion.

On June 20, 2014, Belle and PLC entered into a Subscription Agreement for
24,700,000,000 common shares of PLC at a subscription price of B0.369 per share or a fotal
subscription of R9,114,300,000 thereby increasing Belle’s ownership interest in PLC to 90%.
Subscription payments were received in July 2014.

On July 18, 2014, PLC’s Board of Directors and stockholders unanimously approved the
amendment to the Articles of Incorporation for the increase in authorized capital stock from
R4,032,500,000 divided into 10,130,000,000,000 common shares with par value of
R0.25 per share and 6,000,000,000 preferred shares with par vaiue of R0.25 per share, t0
R10,907,50C,000 divided info 37,630,000,000 common shares with par value of B0.25 per share
and 6,000,000,000 preferred shares with par value of 20.25 per share. The application for the
increase in authorized capital stock was approved by the SEC on September 5, 2014.

Material acquisitions of investments
The Company has invested in various companies as follows:
4. 100% Equity investment in Premium Leisure and Amusement, Inc. ("PLAI")

PLAI is a co-grantee together with Belle Corporation and other SM consortium mernbers
(under CA/License Reg. No. 08-003) by the Philippine Amusement and Gaming Corporation
(“PAGCOR") of a Certificate of Affiliation and Provisiona! License (the “License”) to operate
an integrated casino resort, complex in the approved site located in the vicinity of the Bagong
Nayong Pifipino Manila Bay Entertainment City (‘PAGCOR Entertainment City"), which site
was originally referred to as "Belle Grande”. . PLAl's License runs concurrent with PAGCOR's
Congressional Franchise, which expires in 2033 unless renewed for another 25 years by the
Philippine Congress. PLAI was the special purpose entity authorized by PAGCOR to perform
the casino operations for the consortium.

On October 25, 2012, Belle Corp., together with PLAI and SM Investments Corporation
(Phiippine Parties), formally eniered into a Cooperation Agreement with Meico Crown
Entertainment Limited (‘"MCE Parties”), which took effect on March 13, 2013, the date on
which the conditions to closing under the Closing Arrangement Agreement were futfilled, or
waived. Under the Cooperation Agreement, the Philippine Parties agreed to include the MCE
Parties as co-licensees for which PAGCOR issued an Amended Ceriificate of Affiliation and
Provisional License dated January 2013. The Cooperation Agreement further specified the
respective roles of the Philippine Parties and the MCE Parties in the casino resort project.

Under the Cooperation Agreement, the Philippine Parties, through Beile Corporation, wouid
provide the land and building structures for the casinc complex. The land and building
structures are leased to the MCE Parties who will in turn provide the fit outs and operate the

entire casino complex.

i ikewise under the Cooperation Agreement, the new special purpose entity to perform the
casino operations was agreed to be MCE Leisure (Philippines) Corporation. In consideration
for ceding that role from PLAI to MCE Leisure (Philippines) Corporation, the MCE Parties
agreed to pay the Philippine Parties, through PLAI, certain amounts based on garming

revenues as follows:



Fees payable to PLAI

PLAl will be entitled to receive from MCE Leisure agreed upon monthly payments consisting
of the foliowing:

a) the higher of (i} ane-half of the Project's Mass Market gaming EBITDA (after deductions
comprising 2% management allowance, Mass Market operating expenses and an agreed
deductible of 7% of Mass Market Gaming EBITDA) (PLAI MASS EBITDA,) or {ii) 15% of the
Project’s net Mass Market gross gaming revenues {after deduction of amounts for PAGCOR
non-VIP license fees) (PLAI MASS Net Win), whichever is higher; and

b) the higher of {i) one-half of the Project’s VIP gaming EBITDA (after deductions
comprising 2% management allowance, VIP operating expenses and an agreed deductible
of 7% of VIP gaming EBITDA) (PLAI VIP EBITDA) or (i) 2% of the Project’s net VIP gross
gaming revenues (after deduction of amounts for PAGCOR VIP license fees, VIP
commissions and incentives, as well as VIP bad dept expenses) (PLAI VIP Net Win),
whichever is higher (the PLAI VIP Monthly Payment).

In addition, at the end of each fiscal period of 24 months, a calculation is made to determine
the difference between (i) the higher of PLAI VIP EBITDA and 5.0% of the Project's net VIP
gross gaming revenues (after deduction of amounts for PAGCOR VIP license fees, VIP
commissions and incentives as weli as VIP bad debt expenses), and (i) the cumulative PLAI
VIP Monthly Payments made for the fiscal period. If (i) is higher, the difference is paid to
PLA| as an additional payment for the following period. If (ii) is higher, the difference is
deducted from the first VIP payment for the following fiscal period. Meanwhile, MCE Leisure
will retain all revenues from the non-gaming operations of the Project.

in October 2013, MCE announced the rebranding of the integrated resort as "City of Dreams
Manila", after its successful flagship City of Dreams resort in Macau's Cotai Strip. The City of
Dreams Manila will have ~850 hotel rooms from & towers. It will have 22,507 square meters
of gaming gross floor area from a total gross floor area of 300,097 square meters. | will also
include ~ 20,000 square meters of retail and restaurant facilities and various entertainment

options.

Moreover, following amendments to PAGCOR's regulations, the City of Dreams Manila is
anticipated to be able to operate the following:

: : . Previous Allotment ‘Current Allotment =
Number of mass & VIP tables 242 365

Number of slot machines 1,450 1,680
Number of electronic table - ’ 1,680
games

MCE, a company listed in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, whose major shareholders are
Melco International Development Limited and Crown Limited, is & developer and owner of
integrated resort facilities focused on the Macau market. Its operating complex in Macau’s
Cotai Strip, known as the "City of Dreams”, is a highly successful project that houses a
gaming facility, a Crown Hotel, a Grand Hyatt Hotel, a Hard Rock Hotel and an upscale retail
operation, along with a mix of bars and restaurants that are drawing crowds mainly from
Hong Kong and China. The "City of Dreams” is also known for its spectacular show called
“The House of Dancing Water”, which has become one of Macau’s major tourist affractions.
MCE is building its second integrated resort in Macau called "Studio City”. The Cooperation
Agreement governs the parties’ development and operation of the City of Dreams Manifa

integrated resort complex.
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2. 34.5% Equity investment in Pacific Online Systems Corporation {"LOTQO")

Pacific Online Systems Corporation, with PSE ticker symbol LOTO was incorporated in 1993.
A systems integrator of gaming solutions, it primarily, leases online betting equipment to the
Philippine Charity Sweepstakes Office (PCSO) for their lottery operations and has been

consistently profitable since its fiscal year 2002,

3. 3.75% equity in Metro Manila Turf Club, Inc. ("MMTC")

MMTC has a congressional franchise for horse racing, which was granted in 1995,

4. Foundation Capital Resources, Inc. (“FCRI") - 100% subsidiary

FCRI was registered with the SEGC on February 8, 1994 primarily to invest in, purchase, or
transfer, morigage,

pledge, exchange, operate, enjoy or otherwise dispose of, securities and other investments

otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, develop, lease, sell, assign,
as may be permitted by Jaw. It is presently stili inactive.
5. Sinophil Leisure and Resorts Corporation (“SLRC”) - 100% subsidiary

SLRC was registered with the SEC on December 27, 2007 primarily t
operate and/or invest in amusement, entertainment and recreation b

the Philippines. It is presently siill inactive.

Financial Performance

The Company derives its revenues primarily from investment activities, as fol

o conduct, maintain,
usinesses, including

games of chance and skills, which may be allowed by law within the territorial jurisdiction of

lows:

Year ended December 31 2014 2013
interest income from banks 8,465,350 1,043
Dividend income 1,999,754 -
Gaming revenue share 38,809,095
Gain on sale of properties ) 149,170,154 -
Equity in net earnings of an associate 31,521,474 -
Total " 227,965,827 1,043

Employees

The Company is a holding company whose business is not manpower
affiliates on an as needed basis. This arrangement is also resorted to in k

Company are not subject to Collective Bargaining Agreements.

intensive; hence, is

transactions are extremely manageable through temporary secondment of personnel from its
eeping with austerity

measures adopted due to present economic conditions, These personnel seconded to the
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Risks
Economic and Political Conditions

The Company's business is mainly the acquisition of investments in gaming, which are generally
influenced by Phifippine political and economic conditions. Events and conditions that may have a
negative impact on the Philippine economy as & whole may also adversely affect the Company's
ability to acquire various investments.

Changes to the Philippine Laws and Regulations

Although laws and regulations are enacted for the common benefit, changes to these laws and
regulations may create negaiive effects to the operating and financial condition of Belle, including
its subsidiaries and affiliates.

In order to mitigate the risks mentioned above, the Company will continue fo exercise fiscal
prudence and adopt what it considers conservative financial and operational contrals.

Competition

PLC which derives majority of its revenue from City of Dreams Manila. City of Dreams Manila will
be competing against casinos operaied by PAGCOR and the other two licensees that are already
operating — Resorts World Manila of Travelers internationai Hotel Group, Inc. ("Travelers") and
Solaire Resort and Casino of Bioomberry Resorts Corporation. Travelers has also broken ground
on its planned Resorts World Bayshore project in PAGCOR City, with the opening thereof
reportedly estimated by Travelers in 2018. The fourth licensee, Universal Entertainment Inc., is
not yet in operation and the opening date for its resort is still uncertain as of this date.

Properties

The Company and its subsidiaries have real estate properiies recorded as an investment
property. These properties are not subject to mortgage, lien and encumbrances. Please refer to
Note 13 of Notes to Financial Statements.

Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company's knowledge neither the Company nor any of iis subsidiaries or
affiliates is a party to, nor are they involved in, any litigation that will materially affect its interests.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the calendar year covered
by this report.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

MARKET INFORMATION

The principal market where the registrant's common equity is traded is the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE). The high and low sales prices for each quarter within the last two fiscal years of the registrant’s

common shares, as quoted on the PSE, are as follows:
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STOCK PRICES

2014

First Quarter 0.330 0.275
Second Quarter 1.850 0.315
Third Quarter 1.970 1.360
Fourth Quarier 2.250 1.580
2013

First Quarter 0.500 0.310
Second Quarter 0.420 0.290
Third Quarter 0.320 0.280
Fourth Quarter 0.300 0.260

As of February 27, 2015, Pr
shares in the PSE amaunted o p51,552,515,300.00 ba

As of the end of the trading day on 17 March 2015, PLC's m
outstanding shares in the PSE amounted to P 49,971,149,800.00

per share.

SECURITY HOLDERS

The number of shareholders of record as of 28 February 2015 was 54

of 28 February 2015 were 31 ,627,310,000.

emium Leisure Corp. market capitaiization on 31,627,310,000 outstanding
sed on the closing price of R1.83 per share

arket capitalization on 31,627,310,000
based on the closing price

of-R2 1.58

2 Common shares outstanding as

Percentage of
Rank Name Citizen-ship Total Ownership

1 BELLE CORPORATION FILIPINO ] 24,700,000,004 78.087
2 PCD NOMINEE CORP. (FILIPINO) FILIPINO | 3,890,758,206 12.302
3 PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (NON-FILIPING) OTHERS | 1,523,902,803 4.818
4 INTEGRATED HOLDINGS, INC. FILIPINO 320,000,000 1.012
5 SYSMART CORPORATION FILIPINO 228,270,000 0,722
& COMPACT HOLDINGS, INC. FILIPINO 190,000,000 0.601
7 TIMPAN] INTERNATIONAL LIMITED FILIPINO 158,450,000 0.501 |
8 ELITE HOLDINGS, INC. FILIPINO 151,400,000 0.479
9 INPILCOM, INC. FILIPINO 150,000,000 0.474
10 RICHOLD INVESTOR CORPORATION FILIPINO 100,000,000 0.316
11 SYNTRIX HOLDINGS, INC. FILIPINO 74,040,000 0.234
12 EASTERN SEC. DEV. CORP. FILIPINO 20,932,000 0.066
13 WILLY NG OCIER FILIPINO 16,888,000 0.053
14 PARKORAM DEVELOPMENT LIMITED OTHERS 14,264,119 0.045
15 OSCAR S. CU ITF ANTHONY CU FILIPINO 10,430,000 0.033
16 OSCAR S, CU FILIPINO 9,070,000 0.029
17 AlA CAPITAL CORPORATION (BVI) LTD. FILIPINO 3,612,000 0.011
18 GREGORIO T. YU FILIPINO 3,600,000 0.011
19 THE FIRST RESOURCES MGT. & SEC. CORP. FILIPING 2,810,000 0.009
20 GILBERT DEE FILIPINO 2,600,000 0.008
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DIVIDENDS

The Company's Board of Directors approved on March 5, 2015 the declaration of cash dividends of R
0.022 per share for a total cash dividend payment to its common shareholders of approximately
R 700 million payable on April 17, 2015 to shareholders of record as of March 20, 2015.

There is no legal restriction that limits or would likely limit the Company's ability to pay dividends, aside
from its retained earnings available for such.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

The Company did not sell or issue securities within the past three (3) years that were not registered under
the Securities Regulation Code.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATING PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL
CONDITION

Analysis of Results of Operation and Financial Condition — 2014 compared fo 2013

{Amounts In Pesos, except percentages) For the year ended December 31 Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
Increase {Decrease)
2014 2013 Amount I % 2014 2013

Revenue
Gaming revenue share 38,809,095 - 38,808,095 100.0% 17.0% 0,0%
Other Income
Gain on sale of land 149,170,154 - 148,170,154 100.0% 65.4% 0.0%
Equity In net earnings of an associate 31,621,474 - 31,621,474 100.0% 13.8% 0.0%
Interest income from cash in bank and cash
equivalents 6,465,350 1,043 6,464,307 619780.2% 2.8% 100.0%
Dividend income 1,999,754 - 1,999,754 100.0% 0.9% 0.0%

f 227,965,827 ’ 1,043 227,964,784 '21 856642.8% " 100.0% 100.0%

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES {468,991,793) (8,735,710) 480,256,083 5268,7% -205.7% -837556.1%

FAIR VALUE CHANGE DUE TO CANCELLATION
OF SWAP AGREEMENT AND SALE OF GOLF
CLUB SHARES 1,643,407,304 - 1,643,407,304 100.0% 720.9% 0.0%

SHARE IN CUMULATIVE TRANSLATION
ADJUSTMENT OF AVAILABLE FOR-SALE

FINANGIAL ASSETS (58,318,988) - (58,318,988) -100.0% -25.6% 0.0%
r
INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,344,062,350 (8,734,667) 1,352,797.017 15487.7% 5896% -837456.1%
PROVISION FOR CURRENT INCOME TAX 5,117,366 - 5,117,366 100.0% 2.2% 0.0%
NET INCOME (LOSS) 1,338,544,984 (8,734,667) 1,347,679,651 15429.1% 587.3% -BI7456.1%
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME {LOSS)
Fair value change due to recovery of previous
impainment 1,643,407,304 - 1,643,407,304 100.0% 720.9% 0.0%

Recycling of fair value charge dua to
cancallation of Swap Agreement and sale of goif

club: shares {1,643,407,304) - (1,643,407 304} -100.0% -720.5% 0.0%
Mark-to-mark gains (losses) on available-for-
sale financial assets 23,420,369 {20,800,737) 44,221,108 212.6% 10.3% -19984318.0%

Share in the other comprebansive loss of an
associate accounted for using the equity method
- net of tax {3,989,546) - (3,989,546) -100.0% -1.8% 0.0%

19,430,823 {20,800,737) 40,231,560 193.4% B.5% -1994316.0%

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{LOS5) FOR THE PERIOD 1,358,375,807 {29,535,404) 1,387,911,211 4689.1% 595.9% -2831774.1%
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PLC realized consolidated income amounting to P1,338.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to a consolidated net loss of R8.7 million for the year ended
December 2013. The higher net income in 2044 resulted mainly from: a) B1,219.1 million net
reversal of a provision for impairment of its investment in Legend international Resorts (LIR) HK
Limited foliowing the cancellation of the 1,000,000,000 PLC shares formerly held by Metroplex
and rescinding the Swap Agreement; (9) reversal of impairment for the 220 membership shares
in Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, inc. amounting to P83.6 million fottowing the eventual sale in
July 2014; (c) R148.2 miliion gain on the sale of its real estate property in the Aseana Business
Park and 17 parcels of lands in The Parks at Saratoga Hills; {d) P38.8 million Gaming Revenue
share from the opening of the City of Dreams Manila integrated resort and casino operations for
the period December 14-31, 2014; () R31.5 million Equity in net earnings of an associate; (f)
interest income from cash in banks and short-term deposits of B86.5 million.

General and administrative expenses increased by R460.3 million compared to 2013 due
to: (a) provision for doubtful accounts on its receivable from LIR and provision for probable loss
on its input VAT amounting to P340.7 and P9.0 respectively; (b) amortization of intangible assets
of B48.6 million; (c} payment of DST and CGT arising from sale of its real properties amounting fo
R24.3 million; and (d} payment of professional and service fee of P18.0 miliion.

PLC's total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31 2014 of P1,3568.4
was higher than total comprehensive loss of 229.5 million due to higher net income as discussed
above and higher mark-to-market gain on available-for-sale financial assets.
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December December Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
Increase (Decrease)
2014 2013 Amount | % 2014 2013
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,692,121,573 925,039 2,691,196,534 290927.8% 17.0% 0.0%
Receivables and others 57,800,517 26,201,799 31,598,718 120.6% 0.4% 1.3%
Qther current asset - 65,501,280 (65,501,280} -100.0% 0.0% 3.2%
Total Current Assets 2,749,922,090 92,628,118 2,657,293,972 2868.8% 17.3% 4.5%
Non-Current Assets
Intangible asset 10,794,591,525 - 10,794,591 525 100.0% 68.0% 0.0%
Investment in an associate 1,552,566,238 - 1,552,566,238 100.0% 9.8% 0.0%
Available-for-sale financial
assets 489,801,169  1,580,820,800  (1,091,019,631) -69.0% 3.1% 76.5%
Investment properties 285,510,452 394,210,452 (108,700,000) -27.6% 1.8% 19.1%
Other noncurrent assets 469,298 - 469,298 100.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total Non-Current Assets 13,122,938,682  1,975.031,252  11,147,907,430 564.4% 82.7% 95.5%
Total Assets 15,872,860,772  2,067.,659,370  13,805,201,402 667.7% 100.0% 100.0%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilitles
Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities 79,141,507 53,321,503 25,820,004 48.4% 0.5% 2.6%
Income tax payable 4,812,080 - 4,812,080 100.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Tatal Current Liabilities 83,953,587 53,321,503 30,632,084 57.4% 0.5% 2.6%
Non-Current Liabilities
Retirement liability 1,047,500 - 1,047,500 100.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Due to Belle Corporation - 179,091,579 (179,011,579) -100.0% 0.0% 8.7%
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,047,500 179,011,579 (177,964,079) -98.4% 0.0% 8.7%
Tofal Liabilities 85,001,087 232,333,082 (147,331,985) -63.4% 0.5% 11.2%
Equity
Capital stock 7,906,827,500  7,927,310,000 (20,482,500) -0.3% 49.8% 383.4%
Additional paid-in capital 6,946,201,779  2,039,727,799 4,906,473, 980 240.5% 43.8% 98.6%
Subscription receivable (186,480,975) (4,962,580,586) 4,777,099,611 96.3% -1.2%  -240.0%
Cost of Parent Company
shares held by a subsidiary - (512,594,197) 512,584,197 100.0% 0.0% -24.8%
Other reserves 139,381,879 315,951,765 (176.,569,886)" -55.9% 0.9% 15.3%
Retained eamings {deficit) 980,929,502 (2,972,488,493) 3,953,417,995 133.0% 6.2%  -143.8%
Net Equity 15,787,859,685  1,835,326,288  13,952,533,397 760.2% 89.5% 88.8%
Total Liabilities and Equity 15,872,860,772  2,067,659,370  13,805,201,402 667.7% 100.0% 100.0%

Total assets increased by B13,805.2 million (668%) to B15,872.9 million as of December 31,
2014 from B2,067.7 million as of December 31, 2013. Significant increase in total assets was
due to the 100% acquisition of PLAI and consequently recognition of an Intangible asset-net

amounting

to

R10,794.6 million and acquisition of 34.5% interest in POSC amounting to R1,552.6 million

recorded as an Investment in an associate.

Increased in Receivables and others account

represents the gaming revenue share from MCE Leisure for the period December 14-31
amounting to B38.8 million. Available-for-sale financial assets decreased by 21,091.0 million due
to the redemption of 1,000,000,000 Preferred shares of Belle and the sale of 220 membership
shares in TMGLCI. Decreased in Investment properties account was due to the sale of its real
property in Aseana to Belle. Other assets also decreased due to the sale of the 17 lots in The

Parks at Saratoga Hills.
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Total liabilities amounted to R85.8 million as of December 31, 2014 compared to B232.3 million
as of Decernber 31, 2013 for a decrease of 147.3 million or 63% due to the fuli setttement of the
remaining liabilities to Belle. Accrued and other current liabilities increased due the accrual made
on Professional and Service fee amounting to R14.6 milion. The Company also recorded
retirement liability from its employees and income tax payable for the year.

Stockholder's equity amounted to B15,787.9 million as of December 31, 2014 compared to
B1,835.3 million as of December 31, 2013 for an increase of P13,962.6 miliion or 760%. The
increase was mainly due to Belle’s subscription to new shares of the Company and full payment
of its partially paid shares which were part of the corporate reorganization amounting to ®
12,671.8 million. Decrease in subscription receivable was due the collections made by the
Company from its subscribers amounting to P4,777.1 million. Other reserves increased by B23.4
million due to unrealized mark-to-market net loss on its available-for-sale investments.
Foundation Capital Resources, Inc. 2 wholly owned subsidiary of PLC had sold all of its 156.53
million PLC shares at P1.65 per share resulting in a decrease in "Cost of Parent Company shares
held by a subsidiary” account.

Other movements within the Stockholders’ equity account were primarity due to effects of the
guasi- reorganization completed by PLC in 2014, which reduced the par value of its common
shares from P1.00 per share to B0.25 per share and applied the resulting additional paid-in

capital to reduce its accumulated deficit by R2,614.5 million.

Below are the comparative key performance
subsidiaries:

indicators of the Company and its majority-owned

ratio

Manner by which the financial ratios Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013
are computed
Current ratio Current assets over current
|liabilities 32,76 : 1.00 1.74: 1.00
Return on assets |Net income {loss) over
average total assets during the 14.93% (0.43%)
period ) )
Return on equity [Net income (loss) over
average equity during the period 15.20% {0.47%)
Asset-o-equity .[Total assets over total equity 1.01:1.00 ., 1.13:1.00

Debt fo equity
rafio

Total debt over total equity

Not applicable

Not applicable

interest rate

coverage ratio

Earnings before interest and taxes
over interest expense

Not applicable

Not applicable

The Company does not foresee an

y cash flow or liquidity problems over the next 12 months.

The Company has no borrowings from banks or institutional investors.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations, and other relationships of the

Company with unconsofidated entities were created during the year.

As of December 31, 2014, except for what has been noted in the preceding, there were no material
evenis or uncertainties known to management that had a material impact on past performance, or

that would have a material impact on the future operations, in respect of the following:



. Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have a material

impact on the Company,

. Material commitments for capital expenditures that are reasonably expected to have &

material impact on the Company's short-term or long-term liquidity;
are reasonably expected to have

s material favorable or unfavorable impact on net salesfrevenuesfincome from continuing

« Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that

operations,

« Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's continuing

operations;

« Seasonal aspects that had a material impact on the Company's results of operations; and

Material changes in the financial statements of the Company during the years ende

2013 and December 31, 2014

The Company does not foresee any liquidity probiem over the nex

t 12 months.

Analysis of Results of Operation and Financial Condition — 2013 compared to 2012

d December 31,

{Amounts in Pesos, except pe rcentages) For the year ended December 31

Horizontal Analysis

Vertical Analysis

Increase {Decrease)

2013 2012 Amount Yo 2013 2012
INCOME
nterest income from cash in bank 1,043 1,160 (117} -10.1% 100.0% 0.0%
Gain on liquidating dividend - 33,324,175 (23,324.175) «100.0% 0.0% 100.0%
1,043 33.32‘5,335 (33,324,292) -1 00.0% 100.0% 100.0%
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES (8,735,710 (6,813,678} 1,822,082 26.4% -§37556.1%  -20.7%
PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT
OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS (1.585,088,318) (1,585,068,316) -100.0% 0.0% -4756.4%
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (8,734,687} (1.558,676,659) 1,549,941,992 99.4% .837456.1% -1677.2%
r
PROVISION FOR CURRENT
INCOME TAX - 9,376,689 (9,376,689) -100.0% 0.0% 28.1%
NET LOSS (8,734,667) {1,568,053,348) 4,559,318,681 89.4% _B37456.1% -4705.3%
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INGOME (LOSS)
Mark-to-market gains {losses) on
available-for-sale financial assets
during the year (20,800,737) 94,833,460 {115,634,197) -121.9%  -1994318.0% 284.6%
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS)
1,443,684,483 28.0% _2831774.1% -4420.7%.

FOR THE YEAR {29,535,405) (1,473.219,888)

PLC incurred a consolidated net loss of B8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013,
which compares to a consolidated net loss of B1,568.1 million for the year ended December 31,

2012.

decrease recoverabie value of investments

in the

investments, principally the remaining book value of B1,501.5 million in LIR-H
impairment loss of the Company in 2012 was partially offset by its gain fro
dividend on its investment in Belle Bay City Corporaticn amounting to £33.3 million.

impairment loss provision was necessary in 2013.

In 2012, an impairment loss was recorded amounting to B1,585.

1 miliion due to the
in the Company's available-for-sale
K. The foregoing
m the liquidating
No
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December December Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
Increase (Decrease)
2013 2012 Amount % 2013 2012
ASSETS
Current Assets : : , o
Cash in bank 925,039 789,884 135,155 17.1% 0.0%. 0.0%.
Receivables and others 26,201,799 30,036,723 (3,834,924} -12.8% 1.3% 4.5%
Other asset 65,501,280; - £5,5601,280 100.0% 3.2% 0.0%.
Total Current Assets 92,628,118 30,826,607 61,801,511 200.5% 4.5% 1.5%
Non-Current Assets
Available-for-sale financial
assets 1,580,820,800 1,601,621,537 (20,800,737) -1.3% 76.5% 79.0%
Investment Properties 394,210,452 394,210,452 {0) 0.0% 19.1%. 19.5%,
Total Non-Current Assets 1,975,031,252 1,095,831,989 (20,800,737} -1.0% 95.5% 98.5%.
Total Assets 2,067,659,370  2,026,858,596 41 ,000,774 2.0% 100.0% 100.0%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities 53,321,503 53,367,070 {45,567) 0.1% 2.6% 2.6%
Income tax payable - 2,854,689  (2,854,689) -100.0% 0.0% 0.1%
Due to Belle Corporaiion 179,011,579 105,650,145 73,361,434 69.4% 8.7% 5.2%
Total Liabilities 232,333,082 161,871,804 70,461,178 ’ 43.5% 11.2% 8.0%
Equity
Capital stock 7,927,310,000  7,927,310,000 - 0.0% 383.4% 391.2%
Additional paid-in capital 2,039,727,799 2,089,727,799 - 0.0% 98.6% 100.6%"
Subscription receivable {4,982,580,586) (4,962,655,586) 75,000 0.0% -240.0% -244,9%
Cost of Parent Company
shares held by a
subsidiary (512,594,197) (512,594,197) - 0.0% 248%  -253%
Other reserves 315,951,765 338,752,602 (20,800,737) -6.2% 16.3% 16.6%
Deficit (2,972,488,483) (2,963,753,826)  (B,734,667) 0.3% -143.8%  -146.2%
Net Equity 1,835,326,288 1,864,786,692 (29,460,404} -1.6% 88.8% 92.0%
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,067,669,370  2,026,658,596 44,000,774 2.0% 100.0%: 100.0%:

Total assets increased by R41.0 million {2%),
P2,026.7 million as of December 31, 201

te R2,067.7 million as of December 31, 2013, from

2, mainly due PLC's receipt from Belle Corporation of 17

iots in The Parks at Saratoga Hills with a market value of approximately R65.5 million, in
accordance with a Memorandum of Agreement executed by Belle and PLC on August 28, 2009
and amended on April 5, 2013 (the “Setilement Agreement”}. The Settiement Agreement was
executed between Belle and the Company relative to the proposed settlement of the 1 billion
Belle Preferred shares held by PLC and dividends receivable therefrom. The Settiement
Agreement provides, among others, the following: (i) the transfer by Belle Corporation or its
designee to PLC of 220 shares of Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc. (“TMGC") and 220 saleable
iots in a future project in Tanauan, Batangas at prevailing market rates {The “Future Project”); (i)
in consideration for the TMGC shares, PLC renounced all past, present and future dividends on
Belle preferred shares held by it; and (iii) the eventual cancellation of the Belle preferred shares
held by the Company upon receipt by it of saleable lots in the Fuiure Project, which were
intended to be completed by Belle by August 2014. On April 5, 2013, Belle and the Company
executed an amendment to the Settlement Agreement stipulating an immediate payment by Belle
of property (e.g. the 17 lots in The Parks at Saratoga Hills) and an undertaking by Belle to
arrange for the conversion and titling of 36 hectares of land owned by Sinophil in Tanauan,
Batangas. In exchange, the Company agreed to extend the delivery of sealable lots in the
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Future Project to August 28, 2019, which lots are to have a total valuation of approximately B794

miliion.

The Company's total liabilities increased by R70.5 milfion {44%), to R232.3 million as of
December 31, 2013 from R161.9 million as of December 31, 2012, mainly due to the acquisition
of 17 lots in The Parks at Saratoga Hills from Belle. This and other amounts Due to Belle will be
reversed upon final settlernent of the 1 billion Belle Preferred Shares under the Settiement
Agreement, which is stipulated to ocour by August 28, 2018.

The Company's equity decreased by B29.5 million {2%) from B1,864.8 million as of December
31, 2012 to B1,835.3 million as of December 31, 2013, due to P20.8 million in unrealized mark-to-
market losses on Available-for-Sale (‘AFS") financial assets and the P8.7 million net loss during

2013. The mark

—to-market losses on AFS financial assets during 2013 arose from the decrease

in market value of the Company's 100 million Belle common shares as of December 31, 2013,
compared to December 31, 2012

Aside from what has been mentioned in the foregoing, there were no significant elements of
income or loss that arose from continuing operations, nor were there any seasonal events that
had a material effect on the results of operations, of PLC during 2013.

In 2013, the Company’s stockholders approved the amendments to its Articles of Incorporation
to reduce the par value of the Company's common and preferred shares from B1.00 per share fo
P0.25 per share. Upon approval py the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC") of the
Company's quasi-reorganization, the additional paid in capital arising from the reduction in par
value will be subseguently applied against the Company’s accumulated deficit As at March 11,
2014, the Company is still in the process of filing appropriate applications with the SEC for quasi-

reorganization.

Below are the comparative key performance indicators of the Company and its majority-owned

subsidiaries:

Manner by which the December 31, 2013 | December 31, 2012
Company calculates the key

performance indicators {unaudited) (audited)
Current ratio Current assets over current
fiabilities 1.74:1.00 0.55:1.00

Return on assets

Annualized net loss

over average total assets B
during the period (0.43%) (56.78%)

Return on equity

Annualized net loss
over average stockholders’

equity during the period f (0.47%)| (60.28%)
Asset-to-equity Total assets over total
ratio aquity 1.13:1.00 1.09:1.00
Debt to equity
ratio Total debt over total equity Not applicable Not applicable
Interest rate Earnings before interest and
coverage ratio taxes over interest expense Not applicable Not applicable
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The Company does not foresee any cash flow or liguidity problems over the next 12 months. The
Company has no borrowings from banks or institutional invesiors.

No material off-batance sheet iransactions, arrangements, obligations, and other relationships of
the Company with unconsolidated entities were created during the year.

As of December 31, 2014, except for what has been noted in the preceding, there were no
material events or uncertainties known to management that had a material impact on past
performance, or that would have a material impact on the future operations, in respect of the
following:

« Known irends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainiies that would have a material
impact on the Company,

. Material commitments for capital expenditures that are reasonably expected to have a
material impact on the Company's short-term or long-term liquidity;

« Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have
a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net salesirevenuesfincome from continuing
operations;

+ Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's continuing
operations;

« Seasonal aspects that had a material impact on the Company's results of operations;

The Company does not foresee any cash flow or liguidity problems over the nexi 12 months.

Analysis of Restilts of Operation and Financial Condition - 2012 compared to 2011

{Amounts in Pesos, excepi perce ntages) For the year ended December 34 Horizantal Analysis Vertical Analysis
N Incraase (Decrease}
2012 2011 Amount [ % 2012 2014
INTEREST INCOME 1,160 815 545 89% 100% 100%
GAIN ON LIQUIDATING DIVIDEND 33,324,175 - 33,324,175 100% 100% 100%
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES (8,913,678) (6,437,543) 476,135 1% -595955% -1046755%

PROVISICN FOR IMPAIRMENT
OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

INVESTMENTS {1,685,088,316) {240,000) 1,584,B48,316  660353% -136633766% -39024%
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX {1,558,676,659) (6,676,828) (1,551,989.731)  -23244% -134357005%  -1085678%
PROVISION FOR CURRENT
INCOME TAX 9,376,689 - 9,376,688 100% B08266% 0%
NET LOSS (1,5668,063,348}. {6,676,928) {1,561,376,420)  -23385% -135165361% _ -1085679%

PLC incurred a consolidated net loss of 21,568.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to a consolidated net loss of R6.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The net
loss for 2012 resulted predominantly from a loss provision of 21,501.5 million on the remaining net
hook value of its investment in Legend International Resorts (HK) Limited. The Company also
booked an impairment loss provision of 285 .6 million on its available-for-sale investments in 220
shares of Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc., as a conservative accounting measure. The foregoing
loss of the Company in 2012 was partially offset by gain from the liquidating dividend on its
investment in Belle Bay City Corporation amounting fo R33.3 million. In November 2012, the
Company received a parcel of land with an area of 4,348 square meters from Belle Bay City as
liquidating dividend. The receipt of the said parcel of land from Belle Bay City cancels the
Company's net invesiments in Belle Bay City amounting tc R73.2 million as well at its advances
amounting to R2.2 million. As & result of the liguidation of investments in and advances to Belle Bay
City, the Company received a parcel of land amounting 2108.7 million and recoghized a gain on
liquidating dividend amounting to R£33.3 million.
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December December Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
increase (Decrease}
2012 2011 Amount | % 2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash 789,884 418,612 371,272 B%% 0% 0%
Receivables and others 30,038,723 88,256,346 (58,218,623) -66% 1% 3%
Available-for-sale
financial assets 1,601,621,537 3,122,252,656 (1,520,631 119) -49% 79% 89%
Invesiment Properties 394,210,452 285,510,452 108,700,000 38% 19% 8%
Total Assets 2,026,658,596 3,496,438,066 {1,469,779,470) _429%, 100%  100%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities 532,367,070 53,118,841 248,229 0% 3% 2%
income tax liability 2,854,689 - 2,854 689 0% 0% 0%
Due to Belle 105,650,145 105,650,145 0 0% 5% 3%
Total Liabilities 161,871,904 158,768,986 3,102,918 2% 8% 5%
Equity
GCapital stock 7,927,310,000  7,827,310,000 (0) 0%  391%  227%
Additional paid-in capital 2,039,727,799  2,039,727,799 {0y 0% 101% 58%
Subscription receivable {4,962,655,586) {4,962,993,086) 337,500 0%  -245%  -142%
Cost of Parent Company
shares held by a
subsidiary (512,594,187) (512,584,197} - 0%  -25%  -15%
Other reserves 338,752,502 241,919,042 84,833,460 39% 17% 7%
Deficit (2,962,763,826) (1,395,700,478) (1,568,053,348)  112%  -146% -40%
Net Equity 1,864,786,892  3,337,869,080 (1,472,862 388) -44% 92% 95%

2026,658,506  3,496,438.086 (1,469,779,470)  -42%  100% 100%

Total Liabllities and Equity

Total assets as of December 31, 2012 were £2,026.7 million, with shareholders’ equity being
£1,864.9 million. Comparatively, total assets and shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2011
were R3,496.4 million and R3,337.7 million, respectively. There was a decrease in the ending
balances of assets and equity from 2011 to 2012, due mainly from a decrease in available-for-
sale (AFS) investments of £1,520.6 million and collection of receivables from related parties and
securities broker of R58.2 million, from R3,122.3 million as of December 31, 2011 to R1,601.6
million as of December 31, 2012. The decrease in the AFS investments balance was due to the
impairment loss recognized on its AFS investments in LIR- HK and Tagaytay Midiands shares.
The decrease in available-for-sale investments was partially offset by the acquisition of additional
Belle shares amounting to 242.9 million and unrealized mark-to-market gains on Belle shares
amounting to £94.8 million. During the year, the Company also received land with an area of
4,348 square meters and a valuation of 2108.7 million, as a gain from the liquidating dividend
from its investment in Belle Bay City Corporation. The increase in deficit of 1,568.0 million, from
R1,395.7 million as of December 31, 2011 to R2,963.7 million as of December 31, 2012, was due
to the impairment loss recognized on AFS investments in LIR-HK and Tagaytay Midlands shares.
The unrealized mark-to-market gains on AFS investments increased by R94.8 million due to the
increase in market value of its investrnent in 85.7 million Belle shares. Aside from what has been
mentioned in the foregoing, there were no significant elements of income or joss that arose from
continuing operations, nor were there any seasonal events that had a material effect on the
results of operations, of PLC during 2012

On August 23, 2001, with respect to PLG’s investment in 40% of the equity of LIR-HK, the LIR-HK
Unwinding was agreed into by and among the Company, Belle, Metroplex and LIR-HK, thereby
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rescinding the Swap Agreement entered into by them in 1997, canceling all obligations stated
therein, reversing all the relevant transactions, and canceling or returning all the shares of PLC
and LIR exchanged thereby. To effect cancellation of the Metroplex’s investment, PLC's
shareholders, during their meeting on February 18, 2002, approved the reduction of its capital
stock to the extent of 3.87 billion shares held by the former. However, due o Metroplex's failure
to deliver for cancellation the stock certificates covering 2.0 billion shares of their total
sharehoidings at that time, PLC again presented to its shareholders on its meeting on June 3,
2005 = reduction in its authorized capital stock to the extent of 1.87 billion shares (the “Partial
LIR-HK Unwinding”). On March 28, 2008, the SEC formally approved the Partial LIR-HK
Unwinding and the 1.87 billion cancelled Sinophil shares were then delisted with the Philippine
Stock Exchange. The one billion PLC shares used as collateral by LIR-HK for a loan from Union
Bank were delivered by Union Bank to the Company in 2007, and formal approval by the SEC for
cancellation thereof was obtained on June 24, 2008. As of December 31, 2012, one billion
Sinophil shares still remained outstanding from Metroplex.

On Augusi 28, 2009, a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was executed between Belle
Corporation and the Company relative o the proposed settliement of the 1 pbillion Belle Preferred
shares held by PLC and dividends receivable therefrom. The MOA provides, among others, the
foliowing: (i) the transfer by Belle Corporation or its designee to Sinophil of 220 shares of
Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc. (TMGC) and 220 saleable lots in a future project in Tanauan,
Batangas at prevailing market rates; (ii) in consideration for the TMGC shares, PLC renounced all
past, present and future dividends on Belle preferred shares held by it; and (iii) the eventual
cancellation of the Belle preferred shares held by the Company upon receipt by it of the saleable
lots, which are to be completed by Belle by August 2014.

Below are the comparative key performance indicators of the Company and its majority-owned
subsidiaries:

Manner by which the key

performance indicators are Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2011
computed

Current ratio Current assets
Current Liabiliiies 0.65:1.00 1.67 : 1.00

Return on assets [Net Loss

Average Total Assets
during the period (56.78%) (0.19%)
Return on equity [Netloss
average equity

during the period (60.28%) {0.20%)
Asset-to-equity Total assels 1.09:1.00 1.05:1.00
ratio Total equity
Debt to equity {Totat Debt X .

— bl N licable
ratio Total Equity Not applicable otappiic
Interest rate Earnings Before interest and

Taxes Not applicable Not applicabie

coverage ratio

Interest Expense

The Company does not foresee any cash flow or liquidity problems over the next 12 months. The
Company has no borrowings.

No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations, and other relationships of
the Company with unconsolidated entities were created during the year.
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As of December 31, 2012, except for what has heen noted in the preceding, there were no
material events or uncertainties known to management that had a material impact on past
performance, or that would have a material impact on the future operations, in respect of the
following:

(@) Known trends, dernands, commitments, events or uncertainties that would have a material
impact on the Company;

(b) Material commitments for capital expenditures that are reasonably expected to have a
material impact on the Company's short-tertm or long-term liquidity;

{(c) Known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have
a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenuesfincome from continuing
operations,

(d) Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company's caontinuing
operations;

(e) Seasonal aspects that had a material impact on the Company's resuits of operations; and

() Material changes in the financial statements of the Company during the years ended
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012,

Key Variables and other Quaiitative and Quantitative Factors

The Company expects no material commitments for capital expenditures and expected funds in
2014. To the best of the Company's knowledge, aside from what has already been mentioned in
the preceding, there are no known trends, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact
on sales' no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from continuing operations
aside from those disclosed in the Notes fo the Audited Financial Statements; and no seasonal
aspects with material effect on results of operafions.

PLC maintains sufficient cash balances to meet minimum operational requirements, as
determined by management from time to time. Additional cash requirements are sourced from

affiliates. To the best of the Company’s knowiedge, there are no known trends, events or
uncertainties that will have a material impact on its liquidity.

Information on Independent Accountant and Other Related Matters
a. External Audit Fees
2.1. Audit and Audit-Related Fees
The aggregate fees paid by the Company for professional services (including Value Added

Tax) rendered by the externai auditor for the audit of financial statements for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013 foliow:

(RO0O's omitted)
2014 R380
2013 R342

a.2. There were no other assurance and related services by the external auditor that are
reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the registrant's financial
statements.

h. Tax Fees

There were no professional services rendered by the external auditor for tax accounting
compliance, advice, planning and any other form of tax services in each of the last fwo years.
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c. All Other Fees

There were no other professional services rendered by the external auditors for each of the last
two years other than item (a) and {b) above.

d. The Audit Committee's approval policies and procedures for the above services

The Audit Committee has the oversight responsibility over the audit function and activities of the
Company's internal and external auditors. It provides assurance that financial disclosures made
by the management as presented in the Auditor's report reasonably reflect {a) the financiai
condition: the result of operation; and the plans and long-term commitments; and (b) internal
controls are operating as intended.

The Audit Committee has the responsibility to recommend an external auditor to be selected and
appointed by the stockhoiders during each annual stockholder's meeting.

It reviews the audit coverage of the External Auditors and deliberates on their audit report prior to
endorsement to the Board of Directors and presented to the stockholder's for approval.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Please refer to the portion of this information Statement on "Directors and Executive Officers”.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

PLC has formalized its commitment to good corporate governance in compliance with the
initiative of the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC). The Company ‘has adopted its
Marual on Corporate Governance which provides for, among others, a compliance officer
specifically for corporate governance, the duties and responsivilities of a director and the creation
of board committees. These committees are comprised of a nomination committee for selecting
directors and passing upon their qualifications, compensation and remuneration commitiee to
look into an appropriate rewards system and an audit committee to review financial and
accounting matiers. The current members of the aforesaid committees for the calendar year

2042 were appointed on 23 April 2012.

As proof of its compliance with the leading practices and principles in good corporate
governance, PLC regularly submits to the SEC the Compliance Officer's report on (i) the
Corporation's Compliance with its Manual on Corporate Governance, and (i) the directors’
attendance records. It also submits its annual Corporate Governance Self-Rating reports to the
SEC and PSE.

D1 C continues to weicome the nomination and election of independent directors, abiding by the
requirements of law, as well as to help guaraniee proper decision-making at the board level. The
composition of the rest of the board further assures that decisions are based on objective
assessments, reasonable appraisals, open discussions and principled consensus, all in the best
interest of the corporation and its stakehoiders.

The Company is not aware of any non-compliance with its Manual of Corporate Governance, by
any of its officers or employees, Under the Manua! of Corporaie Governance of the Company, the
Compliance Officer is responsible for monitoring compliance with the provisions and
requirements, as well as violations of the Manuat of Corporate Governance.

The Company's Manual of Corporate Governance shall be subject to annual review uniess the
same frequency is amended by the Board.
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UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE COPIES OF THE INFORMATION STATEMENT

AND THE ANNUAL REPORT

UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDER OF RECORD ENTITLED TO NOTICE OF AND
VOTE AT THE MEETING, THE GOMPANY SHALL FURNISH SUCH SHAREHOLDER WITH A COPY
OF THE COMPANY’S INFORMATION STATEMENT (ON SEC FORM 20-1S) AND ANNUAL REPORT
(ON SEC FORM 17-A) WITHOUT CHARGE. ANY SUCH WRITTEN REQUEST SHALL BE

ADDRESSED TO:

THE CORPORATE SECRETARY
PREMIUM LEISURE CORP.
5E TOWER A, TWO E-COM GENTER,
- PALM COAST AVENUE,
‘\_) MALL OF ASIA COMPLEX, PASAY CITY

F\data\CLIENTS\ZBE\CORPA2015 ASM\Second Filing with SEC (30 March 201532015 ASM PLGC 2-15 Form Definitive 20-15.v5.docx
JCN/RCCICAD

RN
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Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries
Index to Supplementary Schedules
Form 17-A, ltem 7
As at December 31, 2014

Supplementary Schedules

A. Financial Assets

B. Amounts of receivables from Directors, Officers, Employees and Principal Stockholders
(other than related parties) "-- :

C. Amounts of Receivables from Related Parties which are Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial

Statements.

D. intangible Assets - Other Assets

E. Long-term Debt

F. Indebtedness to Related Parties

G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
H. Capital Stock

1. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

J. Key Financial Ratios
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Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries
schedule A - Financial Assets

As at December 31, 2014

TssuingiEntity:andzAssociation

Amountshowngnthie:: - o

“Income:received:and:

ofipachiuse < - salanceisheet, " (f . 7 accrued
Cuash 2,682,121,573 6,465,350
Receivables and others 57,800,517
AFS Investments
Eguity Investments Legend International Resorts H.K. - -
Equity Investments Belle Corporation (Preferred Shares) - -
Equity Investments Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club 800,000 -
Equity Investments Belle Corporation {Common Shares) 487,940,068 -
Equity [nvestiments Tagaytay Highlands Int'| Golf Ciub 980,000 -
Equity investments Belle Bay City - -
Eguity Investments Asian Petroleum 11,100 -
Equity Investments PLDT 70,000 -
Equity investments Metro Manila Turf Club - -
489,801,168 -
Total Financial Assets 3,238,723,258
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Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries
Schedule B - Amounts of Receivables from Directors, Officers and Employees
As at December 31, 2014

esignationiof;

“dheiDebtors: . [

Employees
COfficers
Directors

Not Applicable

™




Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries
Schedule C. Amounts of Receivables from Related Parties
As at December 31, 2014

FCRI 520,190,431 91,992 520,282,423 (260,145,827} - 260,136,596 - 260,136,596
SLRC 1,011,510 - 1,011,510 - - 1,011,510 - 1,011,510
521,201,941 91,992 521,283,933 {260,145,827} - 261,148,106 - 261,148,106
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Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries
Schedule D. Intangible Assets
As at December 31, 2014

*" ‘Descyiption ©. b

10,794,591,525

License - 10,843,215,811 148,624,286)

- 10,843,215,811 {48,624,286) - - 10,794,591,525




Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries
schedule E. Long Term Debt

As at December 31, 2014

Balance at
Amount Authorized by | December | Current Portion of Long Non Current Portion of | Interest | Amount and Number of Periodic
Indenture 31, 2012 Term Debt Long Term Debt Rate Payments
Title of issue
and Type of | {In Original {In Original {In Criginal {in Original| {Approx Periodic | Maturity
Obligation | Currency} | (In PhP) Currency) {ln PhP) Currency} {in PhP) Currency} | in PhP) | Payments Date

Not Applicable




Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries
schedule F. Indebtedness to Related Parties
As at December 31, 2014

Not Applicable




Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries
Schedule G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
As at December 31, 2014

Not Applicahle
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Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries
H. Capital Stocks
As at December 31, 2014

Tap T 2T

il

ubscribad

Common Stocks
Percentage Held

Preferred Shares
Percentage Held

L

37,630,000,000  31,440,564,700 186,745,300 24,904,904,652

§,000,000,000 - -

78.74%

16,908,007
0.053%

6,705,497,341
21,2025




Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries

schedule 1. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
As at December 31, 2014

(3,543,372,970)
2,614,473,012
1,568,594,784

Retained Earnings{Deficit) as at December 31, 2013
Effect of quasi re-organization
Net income for the pericd

Unappropriated retained earnings available for dividand declaration, at end of year 739,694,825




Premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries
Schedule 1. Key Financial Ratios
As at December 31, 2014 and 2013

Manner by which the key performance

indicators are computed 2014 2013

Current ratio Current assets 32,76 :1.00 1.74:1.00
Current Liabilities

Return on assets Net income (loss )
Average Total assets 14.93% {0.43%)
during the period

Return an equity Net income (loss )
Average equity 15.20% (0.47%)}

Q during the period

Asset-to-equity ratic Total Assets 1.01:1.00 1.13:1.00
Total Equity

Debt to equity ratio Total Debt Not applicable ‘Not applicable
Total Equity

Interest rate
coverage ratio

Earnings Before interest and Taxes

Interest Expense

Not applicable

Not applicable
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Premium Leisure Corp.
(Formerly Sinophil Corporation)
and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

and Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Iy

and

independent Auditors’ Report

N

g o

Building a better
working worl

£ wariar frm ot Einsl ¥ voung Giobal e

e TSt



svCip Gores Veloyo & Ce Tel: (6323 591 0307 BOAPRC Reg. Mo. 0001,

%%W BTR0 fayaia AVBTIUS Fav. (622 B8 0B72 December 28, 2042, valid urtit December 37, 2018
4226 Makatt City ey comiph SEC Accreditation M. D012-F R-2 (Group A
november 15, 042, valid uriil Mowembe: 18. 2015

Building & petter Philippines
worling worl

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockbolders and the Board of Directors
Premium Leisure Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Premium Leisure Corp.

{formerly Sinophil Corporation) and Subsidiaries which comprise the consolidated statements of

. financial pasition as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the

three years in the period ended December 3 1,2014, and @ summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Munagement’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

 the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial

Management is sesponsible for
staternents in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal conirol

as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consotidated fipancial statements
that are free from material misste ement, whether due L0 fraud or errof.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements hased on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards o Auditing. Those
srandards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
yeasonable assuryance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

Q misstatement.

An andit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounis and disclosures

in the consolidated financial staiements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
inciuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the cansolidated financial statements,
whether due t0 fraud or error. In imaking those risk assessments, the. audiior considers internal control
relevant to the enlity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing ab opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a pasis for

our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of premium Leisure Corp. and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and
their financial perfornance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31,2014 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

gYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

it ¢ W
mg Miguel
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 65556
SEC Accreditation No. 0087-AR-3 (Group A),
Japuary 18, 2013, valid until Janvary 17,2016
Tax ldentification No. 102-092-270
BIR Accreditaiion No. 08-001998-55-2012,
April 11,2012, valid until April 10, 2015
PTR No. 475 1303, January 3, 2013, Makati City

March 5, 2015

AR

A smtier o 6 Errvsh & Yourl st Lozt



PREMIUM LEISURE CORP.

(Formerly Sinephil Corporation)
AND QUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

2014 2013
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 2and cash equivalents (Notes 8 and 21) $12,692,121,573 925,039
Receivables and others (Notes 9, 19 and 21) 57,800,517 26,201,799
Other curvent asset Mote 19) — 65,501,280
Total Current Assets 2,749,922,090 92,628,118
Noncurrent Assets
Tntangible asset (Note 100 10,794,591,525 -
Investment in an agsociate (Note 12) 1,552,566,238 -
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 11 and 21) 489,801,169 1,580,820,800
Investment properties {(Note 13} 285,510,452 304,210,452
Other noncurrernt assets 469,298 —
Total Noncurrent Assets 13,122,938,682 1,975,031,252
TOTAL ASSETS P15,872,860,772 $2,067,659.370

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
(Notes 14, 19 and 21) 279,141,507 P53,321,503
Income tax payable 4,812,080 -
83,953,587 53,321,503

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement liability (Note £}
Due to Belle Corporation (Note 19) -

ota! Noncurrent Liabilities 1,047,500
83,001,087 232,333,082

T
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Equity (Note 15)

Capital stock

Additional paid-1p capital

Subscription receivabie

Cost of Parent Company shares beld by a gubsidiary

Other reserves
Retained earnings (deficit) 080,929,502 (2,972,488,493)
Nel Bquity 15,787,859,685 1,835,326,288

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P15,872,860,772 £2,067,659,37C

See aeeompanying Notes [0 Consolidated Financial Stetements,

1,047,500

179,011,579
179,011,579

7,906,827,500 7,927,310,000
6.046,201,779 2,039,727 799
(185,480,975) (4,962,580,586)
(512,594,197
130,381,879 315,951,765

A
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PREMIUM LEISURE CORP.

Formerly Sinophil Corporation)

(
AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
INCOME
Revenue
Gaming revenus share (Nates 16 and 23) 238,809,095 P P
Other Income
Gain on sale of land (Note 19) 149,170,154 - -
Beuity in net carnings of an agsociate (Note 12) 31,521,474 - -
Interest income from cash in bank
and cash equivalents (Note 8) 6,465,350 1,043 1,160
Dividend income 1,999,754 - -
Gain on liquidating dividend (Note 13) — — 33,324,175
189,156,732 1,043 13,325,335
227,965,827 1,043 33,325,333
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
{Note 17} (468,991,’?‘93} (8,735,710 (6,913,678)
FAIR VALUE CHANGE DUE TO CANCELLATION OF
SWAP AGREEMENT AND SALE OF GOLF CLUB
SHARES (Note 11) 1,643,407,304 - -
SHARE IN CUMULATIVE TRANSLATION
ADJUSTMENTS OF AV AH..ABLE—FOR—SALE
FINANCIAL A_SSETS {Note 11) (58,318,988) - -
PROVISION FOR MPAIRMENT LOSS ON
AY AILABLE—FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
— —  (1,585,088,3 16)

(Note 11)

[NCOME (LOSS) REFORE INCOME TAX 1,344,062,350 (8,734,667) (1,558,676,659)
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) CURRENT
INCOME TAX (Note 18) 5,117,366 - 9,376,689
NET INCOME (LOSS) 1,338,044,084 (8,734,667) (1,568,053,348)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 1o be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods;
. Fair vaiue change due to recovery of previous impairment 1,643,407,304 — -
Recycling of fair value change due to cancellation of Swap ‘
Agreement and sale of golf club shares (1,643,407,304} - -
Marlk-to-market gains (losses) on available-for-sale financial
assets {Note 113 23,420,369 (20,800,’737) 04,833,460
Oiker comprehensive loss nol (0 be reciassified to prafit o
Joss in subsequen! periods;
Shaye in the other comprehensive joss of an associate
accounted for using the equity method - net of tax
(Note 12) (3,989,546) - -
19,430,823 (20,800,737 94,833,460
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR £1.358,375.807 (#29,535,404) (B] A73,214,888)
Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share
{Note 20) £0,086607 (#0.00112) (20.20179)
IS

See accompanying Notes io Comsulidated Financial Steiiel
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PREMIUM LEISURE CORP.

(Formerly Sinophil Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL-STATEIVIENTS

1 General Information

Corporate Information

Prerium Leisure Corp., formerly Sinophil Corporation, (“PLC” or “Parent Company™),

incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as
lly organized with oil and gas

Sinophil Exploration Co., inc. on November 26, 1993, was origina

exploration and development as its primary purpose and investments and development as among

its secondary purposes.

On June 3, 1997, the SEC approved PLC’s application for a change in its primary purpose from cil
and gas exploration aad development to investment holding and real estate development.
Beginning 1998, PLC repositioned itself as an investment holding company. PLC, a publicly-

listed compary traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE), was 78.86% and 58.1% (direct and
indirect) owned by Belle Corporation (“Belle™) and the rest by the public as at December 31, 2014
and 2013, respeciively. In September 2014, Belle’s effective ownership interest in PLC increased
from 52.58% to 89.83% but subsequently reduced to 78.86% upon the sale of 3.7 billion shares by

Belle, APC Group, Inc. (APC) and Foundation Capital Resources, Inc. (FCRI) in October 2014,

The accompanying consolidated financial stateiments include the accounts of the Parent Company,
PremiumLeisure and Amusernent, Inc. (PLAI), FCRI and Sinophil Leisure and Resorts
Corporation (SLRC), wholly-owned subsidiaries and incorporated in the Philippines. PLC and its
subsidiaries {collectively referred to as “the Company”) bave an investment portfolio consisting of
interest in gaming, real estate entities and public amusement recreation.

On September 5, 2014, the SEC approved the amendments to the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation which include, among others, the change in primary purpose to autharize the

Company to engage in and/or invest in gaming businesses, and increase in authorized capital stock

from 16,130,000,000 shares fo 43,630,000,000 shares (see Note 15).

The registered office address of the Company 18 5% Floor, Tower A, Two E-Com Center,
Palm Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City, Metro Manila,

Authorization for the Issuance of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with

& resolution of the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 5, 2015.

2. Corporate Reorganization

On June 2, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a plan to take on the gaming
business and interests of Belle Corporation {the “Investment Plan™). In line with this, the

Cormpany was authorized:

(1) To sell to Belle its non-gaming related assets consisting of the following:

e Membership shares in Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc. (see Note 11);

[T
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A loi with gross area of 4,348 square meters located within the Aseana Business Park al

the Manila Bay Reclamation Area (see Note 13);
«  Several parcels of tand in The Parks at Saratoga Hills within the Tagaytay Midlands

Complex; and

« Undeveloped land located in the City of Tanauan, Province of Batangas (see Nate 19).

(2) To acquire from Relle the following:

«  100% ownership interest in PLAI for a consideration of 210,847,820,000 (see Note 10);
«  34.5% ownership interest in Pacific Online Systems Corporation (“POSC”) for a
consideration of £1,525,034,310 (see Note 12).

(3) Toexecutea Memorandum of Agreemsnt (Second Amendment Apreement o the Settlement
Agreement dated August 28, 2009) for the redemption of 1 ,000,000,000 preferred shares by
Belle for a cash consideration of B1,000,000,000 {see Noie 11).

Basis of Preparation and Consolidation and Statement of Compliance

Basis of Preparation
The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on 2 historical cost basis,

except for available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets which are measured at fair value. The
consolidated financial statements are presented In Philippine peso, which is the Company’s
fiinctiona! and presentation currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when

otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards {PFRS).

Bagis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statemenits comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company

and its wholly owned subsidiaries, PLAI, FCR1 and SLRC (collectively referred to as “the
Company”) (see Note 1). Control is achieved when the Parent Company is exposed, or has rights,
1o variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
thfough its power over the investee. Specifically, the Parent Company controls an investee if and

only if the Parent Company has:

+ Power over the investee (i.¢., existing rights that give il the current ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee);
« Exposure, or rights, 1o variable returns from its involvement with the investes; and

« The ability to use its power over the investee 1o affect its refurns.

The Parent Company re-as5esses whetlier or not it controls an invesiee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes lo one or more of the three elements of control.

The subsidiaries are fuily consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Parent Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

CCABes.

LA DA



« Invesiment Entities (Ame

» DAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Meosurens

» DAS 32, Financial Instrumenis: Presentation - Offsetting Fin

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Company using consistent accounting policies. All intercompany baiances, transactions, income
and expense and profits and losses from intercompany transactions are eliminated in full upon

consolidation.

4, SUes

Changes in Accounting Policies and Discle

The accounting policies adopted are consisient with those of the previous financial year, except for

the adoption of the following amended PFRS that became effective during the year. The adoption
material effect on the

of the new standards and amendments as at January 1,2014 did not have a
acconnting policies, financial position, or performance of the Companmy.

»  Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 36, Impairmen! of Assels - Recoverable Amouni

Disclosures for Nonfinancial Assels (Amendments)
ndments to PFRS 10,Comolidated Financial Statemenis, PERS 12,

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and PAS 27, Separate Fi inancial Statements)

» Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies
ut - Novation of Derivatives and

Continuation of Hedge Accouniing (Amendments)
ancial Assets and Financial

Liabilities (Amendments)

Improvemenis to PFRSs

PFRSs, an omnibus of amendments ¢ gstandards, deal primarily with 2 view of
wordings. There are geparate transitional provisions for
ave an impact on the

Improvements 10
removing inconsistencies and clarifying
each standard. These improvements are effective immediately but did not h
Company’s financial statements. These include:

o+  Annual improvements (o PFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (PFRS 13, Fair Vahe Measurement)
+ Apnual improvements o PFRSs 20112013 Cycle (PFRS 1, Firsi-time Adoption of PFRS)

Future Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when
these become effective. Except a8 otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption
of these new and amended standards and interpretations to have significant impact on its financial

statements.

Effective in 2015

. PFRS 9, Financial Instrumenis — Classification and Measurement {2010 version)

PFRS 9 (2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies 10 the

classification and measurement of financial assets and Jiabilities as defined in PAS 39,

Fingncial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets 10
| asset may, if the fair value

be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt financia
option (FVO) is not invoked, be subsequently meagured at amortized cost if it is held within 2
business model that has the objective to hold the assets {0 collect the contractual cash fIOWs
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and its contractual ferms give rise, on specified dates, 10 cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other debt instruments are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. All equity financial assefs are
meagured at fair value either through other comprehensive income (OCI) or profit or loss.
Equity financial assels held for trading must be measured al fair value fhrough profit or 10ss.
For FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a Liability that is attributable to
changes in credit risk must be presented in OCL The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
Liability’s credit risk ir OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or 10ss.
All other PAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have
been carried forward into PERS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the
criteria for using the FVO. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on
the classification and measurement of the Company’s #nancial assets, but will potentially
have no impact on the classification and measurement of financia! liabilities.

PFRS 9 (2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.

This mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final version of

PFRS 9 was adopted by the Philippine Tinancial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). Such

adoption, however, is still for approval by the Board of Accountancy (BOA).

Amendments to PAS 19, Employee Benefils - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
PAS 19 requires an entity 0 consider contributions from amployees OF third parties when
accounting for defined penefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they
should be attributed to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify
that, if the arnount of the contributions is independent of the mumber of years of service, an

entity is permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the

period in which the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of

service.

Effective after 2015

PAS 16, Property, Planf and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assels - Clarification of
Acceptabie Methods of Depreciation and Amortization { Amendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from opetrating a business (of which the assel is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. Asa result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used 1n very limited circumstances 10 amortize intangible assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on oF afler January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted.

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Planis
(Amendments)

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendmenis, bioiogical assets that meel the definition
of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Insteac, PAS 16 will apply.
After initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost
{(before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model {after maturity). The
amendments also require that produce thal grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
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PAS 4] measured at fair value less cosls 10 sell. For government granis related to bearer
plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance,
will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on of
after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments will not be

applicable to the Company.

PAS 27, Separate Fi inancial Staiements - Bquily Method in Separate Financial Statements
(Amendments)

The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities

already applying PFRS and electing to change to the eguity method in its separate financial

statements will have 10 apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS
11 be required to

electing to use the equity method in its separate financial staiernents, they wi
apply this method from the dafe of transition 1o PFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on ar afier January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted.
PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Veniures - Sale or Contribugion of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture

These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in

PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or coniribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss
is recognized when a transaction involves 2 business (whether it 18 housed in a subsidiary or
not). A partial gain o loss is recognized when a trapsaction involves assets that do not
copstitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments aré
effective from annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2016.
DFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

(Amendments)

The amendments 10 PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acqu isition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously beld interest in a joint operation s not remeasured
on the acguisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint,cuntrol is
retained. In addition, scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the
amendmenis do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under common control of the same ultimate controliing party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in 2 joint operation and the
acquisition of any additiona! interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2016, with early adoption

permitted.

PFRS 14, Regulaiory Deferral Accounts

PFRS 14 isan optional gtandard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-
regulation, o continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that acopt PFRS 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line ilems on the statement of financial
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position and present movements in these account balances as geparate line jtems in the

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosures

on the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that

rate-regulation or its financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016. This standard will not be applicable to the Company.

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting and amendments 10 PEFRS 9, PFRS 7,
Financial Instruments: Disclosures and PAS 39 (2013 version)

PFRS 9 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project Lo replace PAS 39 which
pertains to hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge
accounting model of PAS 39 with & more principles~based approach. Changes include

d hedge effectiveness test with an objectives—based test that focuses o

replacing the rules-base
the economic relationship berween the hedged item and the hedging instrument, and the effect

C, of credit risk on that economic relationsiip; allowing risk components {0 be designated as the
hedged item, not anly for financial items but also for non-financial items, provided that the
risk component is separately \dentifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time value
of an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency bagis spread
10 be excluded from the designation of & derivative instrument as the hedging instrument and

accounted for as coSts of hedging. PFRS 0 glso reguires more exiensive disclosures for hedge

accounting.

PFRS 9 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of
January 1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the
FRSC. The adoption of the final version:of PTRS 9, however, is still for approval by the

BOA.
.« PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014 or final version)

In Juty 2014, the fina! version of PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, Was issued, PERS 9 reflects

all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments:

! Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS §. The standard introduces

N new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accouniing,
PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early
application permitted. Retrospective application is required, bul comparative information is
not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 js permitted if the date of
initial application 18 before February 1, 2015.

Annual Improvements 10 PFRSs

These improvements 10 the foliowing standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning cn o before January 1, 2015 and either are not expected io have 2 material impact on
the Company’s apancial statements or not relevant to the Company’s operations.

Annua) Improvements {0 PIRS (2010-2012C cle

« PERS 2, Share-based Paymeni - Definition of Vesting Condition

This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the
definitions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

v A performance condition must contain a service condition
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« A performance target must be mel wiile the counterparty is rendering service
= A performance target may relate to the operations of activities of an entity, ot 10

another entity in the same group
» A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition
«  If the counterparty, regardless of the reagon, ceases 10 provide gervice during the vesting

petiod, the service condition is not satisfied.

those of

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Aecounting for Contingen! Consideration in d Business

Combination

The amendment clarifies that a contingent consideration that meets the definition of a
financial instrument should be classified a8 a financial liability or as equity in accordance with
PAS 32. Contingent consideration that is not clagsified as equity is subseguently measurad at
fair value through profit or loss whether or not it falls within the scope of

PFRS O (or PAS 39, if PFRS 9 is not yet adopted).

oregation of Operaiing Segments and Reconciliation of the

PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Agg
Total of the Reporiable Segmenis " gssets lo the Entity s ASseis

The amendments require entities to disclose the judgment made by management in

apgregating (wo Or more operating segments. This disclosure should include a brief
description of the operating segments that have been aggregaied in this way and the economic
indicators that have been assessed in determining that the aggregated operating segments share
similar economic characteristics. The amendments aiso clarify that an entity shall provide
reconciliations of the total.of the reportable segments’ assets L0 the entity’s assets if such
amounts are regulatly provided to the chief operating decision maker. '

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipmen( - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulated Depreciation

The amendment clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment,
the carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall

be treated in one of the following ways:

a) The gross carrying amount is adjusted in 2 manner that is consistent with the revaluation

of the carrying amouit of the asset. The accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying armount and the .

carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment losses.

b)Y The accumulated depreciation 1s eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the assel.

The amendment shall apply to all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginming on oF
after the date of initial application of this amendment and i the immediately preceding annual

period.
PAS 24, Related Parly Disclosures - Key Menagement Personnel

The amendments clarify that an entity 1s a related party of the reporting entity if the said
entity, or any member of a group for which it is a part of, provides key management personnel
services lo the reporting entity or to the parent company of the reporting entity. The
amendments also clarify that a reporiing entity that obtains management personnel gervices
from another entity (also referred to as management entity) is hot required to disclose the
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compensation paid or payable by the management entity 1o its employees or directors. The
reporting entity is required Lo disclose the amounts incurred for the key management

personnel services provided by a separate management entity.

PAS 38, Intangible Assels - Revaluation Method - Proportiondie Restaternent of Accumulated

Amortization

upon revaluation of an intangible asset, the carrying amount of

The amendments clarify that,
set shall be treated in one of the

the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amouat, and the as
following ways:

a) The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated amortization at the date of

revaluation is adjusted t0 equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
lated impairment 10sses.

carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accunmu

b) The accurnulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

The amendments also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated
amortization should form part of the increase or decrease in the carying amount accounted for
in accordance with the standard.

evaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or

The amendments shall apply toall 1
preceding annual

after the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately

period.

Apnual Improveinents to PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements

The amendment clarifies that PFRS 3 does not apply to the accounting for the formation of a
joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measuremeni - Portfolio Exception

The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied to financial
assels, fm‘qncial liabilities and other coniracts.

PAS 40, Investment Property

The amendment clarifies the interrelationship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when classifying
property as investment property or owner-occupied property. The amendment stated that
judgment is needed when determining whether the acquisition of investment property ig the
acquisition of an agsel or & group of assets or 2 business combination within the scope of

PFRS 3. This judgment is based on the guidance of PFRS 3.
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Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-20] 4 cvele)

. PFRS 5, Non-currenf Assels Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies thal changing from & disposal through
sale to 2 disposal through distribution {0 owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be
a new plan of disposal, rather it is 2 continuation of the original plan. There s, therefore, no

interruption of the application of the requirements in PRRS 5. The amendment also clarifies

thal changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.

« PERS 7, Financial Instruments. Disclosures - Servicing Contracts

PERS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement ina

transferred asset that is derecognized in 1ts entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing
| asset. An

contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financia
entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in
arder to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied such that

the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involverent will need to be
d to be provided for

done refrospectively. However, comparative disciosures are not Tequire
any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the

amendments.

« PERS 7, Applicability of the Amendments L0 PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial

Starements

ment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of

This amend
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interinm financial

report unless they provide a significant update to the information reported 1n the most recent

annual report.

.« PAS 19, Empioyee Benefits - regional markei issue regarding discount rate

This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality

corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation 15 located. When there is no deep market for high

guality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used,

vhere in the interim

financial report’

The amendment s applied retrospectively and clarifies that the yequired interim disclosures
by cross-reference between

must eitber be in the interim financial statements o incorporated

the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim

financia) report (€.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

Deferred Effectivity

« TPhilippine Interpretation (FRIC 15, Agreements Jor the Construction of Real Esiate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenscs by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The interpretation
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requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon corpletion,

except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 1]
or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized based on stage of
. Contracts involving provision of services with the sonstruction materials and

completio
where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis
will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The SEC and the FRSC have
deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and an evaluation of the requirements of

the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is
completed. This interpretation will not be applicable to the Company.

The following new standard issued by the JASB has not yet been adopted by the FRSC:

«  International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 15, Revenue from Contracis with
Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-siep model that will apply to

revenue arising from contracts with custormers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an
nange for

amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects (o pe entitled in exc
transferring goods or gervices to a customer, The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach to measuring and recogNIZing revemie. The new Revenue standard is
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenus recognition requirements under
IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for anaual periods
beginning on Of after January 1, 2017 with early adoption permitted. The Company s
currenily assessing the impact of [FR3 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required

effective date once adopted locally.

-

5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cagh and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liguid
(nvestments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition and are subject 10 an insignificant risk of change in

value. Cash in bank and short-term deposits earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.

Financial Assets

LiDalle 0 2 o —=

Date of Recognition of Financial Assels. The Company YecognIZes financial assets in the
statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrumenl. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are 1eco gnized on settlement
date, i.e., the date that an assel 18 delivered to or by the Company.

Initial Recognition of Financial Assels. Financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus,
VPL), directly attributable

in the case of investients not at fair value through profit or loss (F
transaction costs.

Categories of Financial Assets and Subsequent Measuremen. Financial assets are classified as

financial assets al FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS
financial assets or a8 derivatives designated as hedging instruments i1 an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Conpany determines the lassification of its financial assets al initial
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recognition and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such clagsification every financial

reporting daie.

Financial Assels al FVPL. Financial assets al FYPL include financial assets held for trading,
derivative financial instruments and those designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are entered into for the purpose of short-
term profit taking. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are accounted for as
financial assets at FVPL unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments or @ financial

guarantee contract.

Changes in fair value of such

Financial assets at FVPL are subsequently recorded al fair value.
d is recorded as interest income

assets are accounted for in profit or loss. Interest earned or incwrTs
or expense, respectively.

luates its financial assets at FVPL (neld for trading) whether the intent to sell

The Company &va
them in the near ferm 18 appropriate. When the Company is unabie (0 trade these financial assets

due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable futre
sets in rare

significantly change, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial as
circumstances. The reclassification to loans and receivables, AFS financial assets Of BTM

{pvestmenis depends on ihe nature of the asset. This evaluation does not affect any financial

assets designated at FVPL using the fair value option at designation.
The Company has no financial assets at FVPL and derivatives designated as hedging instruments
as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
tered into with the

determinable paymenis that are not quoted in an active market. These are not en
intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as financial assets at FVPL or
AFS financial asssts. After initial measurement, loans and receivab les are carried at amortized
cost using the effective mterest method, less any impairment in value, Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or 1oss when the loans and receivables are dereco gnized or impaired, as well

as through the amortization process.

[_oans and receivables are classified as current assets when the Cornpany expects to realize the
assel within 12 months from reporting cate. Otherwise, these are clagsified as poncurrent assets.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, this calegory includes the éompahy’s cash and cash
equivalents and receivables and others (except for inpul VAT) (see Notes 8 and 9).

HTM Invesiments. HTM investiments are quoted nen-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities for which the Company’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hoid to maturity. Where the Company sells other than an
insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire category would be tainted and reclassified as
AFS financial assets. After initial measuremett, these investments are measured at amortized cosl

using the effective interest method, less amy jmpairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by
oral part of the

taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees thatl are an inte;
effective interest rate. Gains and losses 2r¢ recognized In profit or 1oss when the HTM
investments are derecognized or impaired, 25 well as through the amortization process. Assets
under this category are classified ag current assels if maturity date 18 within 12 months from

reporting date and as noncurrent asscls i maturity date is more than a year from reporting date.
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The Company has no HTM investments as at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

AFS Financial Asseis. AFS financial assets are nos-derivative financial agsets thai are designated
as available-for-sale or do ot qualify to be classified as loans and seceivables, financial assets at
FVPL or HTM investmenis. Equity investments classified as AFS are those which are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time and are neither classified as held for trading nor designated
as al FVPL. Debt securiiies are those which are intended to be neld for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs of liquidity or in response 1o changes in market

condilions.

AFS financial assels arc carried at fair vatue with unrealized gains or 10sSes recognized under
other comprehensive income unti! the financial assel is derecognized oF determined Lo be impaired
al which time the accunmulated gains or 10sses previously reported under other comprehensive
income are inchuded in profit or loss. ATFS financial assets that are not quoted in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly atrributable
to the acquisition are also included in the cost of investment. I1fa reliable measure ceases to be
available, AFS financial assets arc thereafter measured at cost, which is deemed to be the fair

value carrying amount at that date.

Assets under this category are classified as current assets if expected to be realized within
12 months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Company designates financial instruments as AFS if they are purchased and held indefinitely

and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, this category includes the Company’s jnvestments in shares of
stock shown under « A vailable-for-sale financial assets” account in the consolidated statements of

financia! position (see Note 11).

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition of Financial Liabilities. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value of the consideration received which is determined by reference 1o the transaction price of
other marlet prices, and in the case of other financial liabilities, inclusive of any directly
attributable transaction COStS. If such market prices are not reliably determinable, the fair value of
the consideration is estimated as the sum of all futare cash payments of receipts, discounted using
the prevailing market rates of interest for similar instruments with similar maturities.

Categories of Financial Liabilities. Financia! liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at
FVPL or other financial liabilities which are measured at amoriized cost Or a8 derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, 25 appropriate. The Cormpany determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition and where allowed and

appropriate, re-evaluates such clagsification every financial reporting dete.

Financial Liabilities af FVPL. Financial liabilities are clagsified in this calegory if these resull

from trading activities oF derivative transactions that are not accounied for as accounting hedges,

or when the Company elects {0 designate a financial liability under this category.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company has no financial {iabilities at FVPL and
derivatives designated as hedging instruments.
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Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains i0 financial liabilities that are not held for
srading ar not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability where the substance of tne
contractual arrangements results in the Company having an obligation either Lo deliver cash or
another financial asset Lo the holder, or to exchange financial assets OF financial liabilities with the
holder under conditions {hat are potentially unfavorable to the Company. These include Tabilities

arising from operalions or horrowings.

After inilial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprebensive income when the habilities are derecognized as well as
through the amortization process. Other financial liabilities arc included in current liabilities if
naturity is within 12 rnonths from the reporting date of the Compary does nol have an
unconditional right.to defer payment for at leagt 12 months from the reporting date. Otherwise,

these are classified as noncurrent liabilities.

This Company’s liabilities arising from operations such as accrued eXpenses and other current
liabilities (exciuding statutory payables), and advances from Belle Corporation are classified
under this category as at Decermber 31, 2014 and 2013 (see Notes 14 and 19).

Offsetting of Financia! Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financia! assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported i the
nancial position if, and only if, there 15 2 currently enforceable right 10

consolidated statement of fi
i on a nel basis, or t© realize the asset

offset the reco gnized amounts and there is ingention Lo settle
and settle the liability simuitaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting
agreements; and the related assets and labilities are presented gross in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Determination of Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy

of Financial Assets and Financial Lizbilities

The fair value for financial assets and financial liabilities traded in active markets at each reporting
date is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for shorl positions), without any deduction for transaction cOSIS. When current bid
and asking prices are not available, the price of the most receil transaction provides evidence of

the current fair value as jong as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances
since the time of the transaction.

For financial assets and financial liabilities where there is 1o active market, except for investment
in unquoted equity securities, fair value 1s determined by using appropriate valuation technigues.
Such techniques include using recent arm's length market {ransactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument, which is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis; and options pricing models. In the absence of a reliable basis for determining fair value,

investments in unquoted equity securities are carried al cost, netl of impairment.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial assets and financial liabilities by yaluation technique:

»  Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets OF liabilities;

« Level 2; other techniques for which all inputs which have significant effect on the recorded
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly;

»  Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recor
that are not based on observabie market data,

ded fair value

AT



—

RN—_—

_J4 .

Fair value measurement disclosures are preseated in Note 21.

Amortized Cost of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amortized cost is computed using the effective interest raie method less any allowance for
impairment, The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and
includes transaction co8ts and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

“Day 17 Difference
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other

observable current market transactions in the same ingtrument or hased on & valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 17 difference) in profit or 10ss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income unless it qualifies for yecognition as s0me other
type of assel. In cases where use i made of data which is not observable, the difference between

the transaciion price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss in the consotidated

statement of comprehensive income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of
recognizing the “Day 17 difference amount.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a

financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
cesult of one or more events that has occurred afier the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
“jogs event”) and that loss event has an impact ol the estimated future cash flows of the financial
agset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the debtors or a group of debiors is experiencing significant financial
difficuity, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correiate with defaults.

Assets Carried af Amortized Cost. For assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. 1fit is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exIsts for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included 10 a group of
financial assets with gimilar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets i
collectively assessed for impairment. ASsets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment 1oss is, or continues, to be recognized are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence thal an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying ampount and the present value of estimated
{foture cash flows discounted at the financial assel’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the financia) asset 15 reduced through use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognized in nrofit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the effective
interest rate of the asset.

provides an allowance for loans and receivables which they deemed to be
continuous effort to coilect such balances from the respeclive

A BRI
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clients. The Company considers those past due receivables as still col
due only because of @ delay on the fulfillment of certain conditions as
not due to incapability of the customers to fulfill their obligation.

i, ina subsequent period, the
related objectively to a

recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subseque
recognized it the consolidated statement of compre

amount of the impairment loss decrease

lectibie if they become past
agreed in the gontract and

s and the decrease canl be

1 event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
it reversal of an impairmelt loss 15
hensive income, to the extent that the carrying

value of the asset does not exceed is amortized cost at the reversal date,

AFS Financial Assels. Far AFS equity investm
whether there is objective evidence that an inves

In the case of equity investments

or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost.
cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which

its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair

evaluated against the original
the fair value has been below
cumulative loss (measured as

value, less any impairment loss on that investine
statement of comprehensive income) is removed

recognized in the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income as
nvestments are not reversed through profit or 1088 in the consolidated

Impairment losses on equity i

statement of comprehensive income. Increases in their fair value after itpairment

directly in other comprehensive ncome in the consolidated statement
)

ents, the Company assesses at each reporting date
tment or a group of investments is impaired.

classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant

“Significant” 1s L0 be

nt previously recognized in the consolidated
from other comprehensive income and

part of profit or loss.

are recognized
of comprehensive income.

Assets Carried at Cost. 1f there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted
equity instrument thal is not carried at fair value because its fair value
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be setiled

unquoted equity instrumen

between the asset’s carrying aimount and the present value of estimate
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset,

Derecopnition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets. A financia! asset (or, wh

group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

» the right lo receive cash flows from the asset has éxpired; or

«  {he Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assu

obligation to pay them in
arrangement; or

»  the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows fro
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

retained substantially all
assel.

Where the Company has iransferred its right to recel
into a “pass-through” arrangement, and has neither tr

cennot be reliably
by delivery of such an

| has been incurred, the amount of the 1085 is measured as the difference

d future cash flows

ere applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a

med an

£l without materia) delay 10 2 third party under a “pass—tlu‘ough”

m the asset and either (a) has
or (b) has neither transferred nor

the risks and rewards of the asset, but has iransferred control of the

risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the

extent of the Company’s con
the form of a gnaranice over

ve cash flows from an asset or has entered
ansferred nor retained substantially all the

asset is recognized to the

tinuing invelvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes

the transferred asset is measured al the lower of the original cairying

A A
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amount of the assel and the maxinmum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required Lo repay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the fiability
is discharged, cancelled or lias expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the lerms of an existing liability are substantially modified, guch an exchange or
modification is trealed as a derecognition of the origina! liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized 1 profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investment in an Associate

The Company’s investment in an associate is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated statermnent of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the
associate less any dividends declared and impairment loss. Goodwill, if any, relating to an
associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither arnortized nor
separately tested for impairment. The consolidated statement of comprehensive income reflects
the Company’s share of the results of operatior. of the associate. When there has been a change
recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Company recognizes jts share in any changes
and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
chariges in equity. Unrealized gains arising from (ransactions with assogiates arc eliminated to the
extent of the Company’s interests in the associates, against the respective investment accOunt.
The share in net earnings of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of
income. This is the profit attributable to equity nolders of the associate and, therefore, is profit
after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company. When necessary, adjustiments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with

those of the Company.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary {0
recognize an additional impairment loss on its invesiment in ifs agsociate. The Company
determines at each end of reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate 15 impaired, If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying

value and recognizes the amount in the “equity n net earnings of an associate” in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence Over the associate, the Company imeasures and recognizes any
retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amouilt of the associate
upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognized in consolidated staiement of comprehensive income.

Assel Acquisition
When property is actuired, through corporate acquisitions or otherwise, management considers

the substance of the asscls and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether the
acquisition represents an acquisition of & business.

AT
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When such an acquisition is not jndged to be an acquisition of a business, it is not treated as a
business combination. Rather, the cosl to acquire the entity is allocated between the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the entity based on their relative fair values at the acquisition date.

Accordingly, no goodwill or additional deferred tax arises.

Intangible Asset

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on in
intangible assels acquired in a business combination is the fair
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accunmlated impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is
reflected in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year the expenditure is

itial recogaition al cosL. The cost of
value as at the date of acquisition.

incurred.

The usefil lives of intangible assets are assessed ag either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment

whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future econoraic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization period of method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expense ot intangible agsets with finite lives is recognized 1n the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the expense calegory consistent with the function of

intangible assets.

)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit leve!, The assessment of indefinite life
ig reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life from the indefinite to fipite is made on @ prospective basis.

ecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference

(tains or losses arising from der
asset and are recognized in the

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
consolidaied statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

Property and Bguipiment sresented as part of Other Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment are stated at cost, excluding the cost of day-to-day servicing, less

accumulated depreciation and impairment in vatue. Such cost consists of the purchase price and

any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
of replacing part of the

be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The cost
property and equipment is included in the carrying amount when the cost incurred meets the
recognition criteria. When major repairs and maintenance is performed, its cost is recognized in
{he carrying amount of the property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. Al other repair and maintenance costs are charged against profit or loss in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Depreciation COMMENcEs ance the assets are available for use and is computed using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

4 years

Computer equipment
3 years

Transportation equipment

A
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The assets’ residua) values, nseful lives, and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, al cach financial year-end to ensure that the periods and method of
depreciation are consistent with the expected patiern of economic benefits from items of property

and egquipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or whexn 00 future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

the year the asset 1§ derecognized.
Fully depreciated property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in
use and no further depreciation is charged to current operations.

Investment Property

Investment property, which consists of land, is carried at cost less any impairment in value,

y is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or when the investment

Investment propert
s expected from its

property is permanently withdrawn from use and no fiLture economic benefit 1
disposal, Any gains or 1085e8 ON the retirement or disposal of an investment property are

recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive mcome in the year of

retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupalion or commencement of an operating lease t© another
party. Transfers are made from investment propetty when, and only when, there is a change in
use, evidenced by commencement of owner-pceupation or commencement of development with 2

view to sell.

For a transfer from investment property to owner-gocupied property or inventories, the cosl of
property for subsequent accounting is its catrying value at the date of change in use. If the
property occupied by the Company as an owner-occupied property becornes an investment

property, the Company accounis for such property in accordance with the policy for property,
plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Company a5sesscs at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the investment
property and propesty and equ jpment may be impaired. 1f any such indication exists or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount. A asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s cash-generating
unit’s fair value Jess cost to sell or its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the assel does not generate cagh inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is considered impaired and i written down to its recoverable amount. 1n determining fair value

less cost to sell, an appropriale valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
in use, the

yaluation multiples and other available fair value indicators. In assessing value in
estimated future cash flows are discounied to their present value using a pretax discount rate that
reflects cusrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Any impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated staternent of

comprehensive income in the expense category consisient with the function of the impaired asset.

ARG HRATAA A
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An assessment is made al each reporting date as to whether there 1s any indication thal previously
recognized impairment losses may no lenger exigt or may have decreased. If such indication
exigts, the Comparty makes an estimate of recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
assel’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. 1T that is the case, the
carrying amount of the assel is increased Lo its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannol

exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income either as part of profit or Joss for the year or as patt of other

comprehensive NCOME in the case of assel carried at revalued amount.

Retirement Liability
The Company follows fhe minimum reguirements set forth by Republic Act (RA) No. 7641,

An Act amending Article 287 of Presidential Decree no. 442, as amended, otherwise known as
wThe Labor Code of the Philippines”, covering all regular employees based on current monthly
basic salaries. The retirement cost is determined usiag the projected unit credit method. Projected
credit unit method reflects services rendered by employees to the date of the valuation and
incorporates assumptions concerning employees’ projected salaries. The present value of an
entity’s obligations reflects the discounted estimated amount of benefit that employees have
earned in return for their gervice in the current and prior periods. This requires the entity o
determine how much benefit is attributable to the current and prior periods based on the plan’s
benefil formuia and to make actuarial agsumptions about demographic and financial variables.

Equity
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly

attributable to.the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of
tax.

Proceeds and/or fair value of consideration received in excess of par value are recognized as

additiona} paid-in capital.

Retained earnings (deficit) represent accummulated net earnings (losses).

Subseription receivable represents the unpaid portion of subscription of capital shares by the

investors,

The Pareni Company shares held by a subsidiary are accounted for as equity instruments which
are reacquired and are recognized at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issue, or
cancellation of the Company's Own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying

amours and the consideration 18 recognized in other [eServes.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized 0 the extent that il 18 probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the amount of the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment 18 peing made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received of
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes of

duty.

A
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The foliowing specific recognition criteria nst also be met pefore revenue is recognized:

Gaming Revemie Share. Revenue representing monthly payments from MCE Leisure (Philippines)
Corp., or Meico, based on the performance of gaming operations of City of Dreams Manila
integrated resort and casino is recognized when earned pursuani 10 the Operating Agreciment

(see Notes 16 and 23).
Interest Income. lnterest income is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the
effective yield on the asset.

Dividend Income. Revenue is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive the payment i8

established.

Equity in Nel Earnings of an Associgte. The Company recognizes its share in the net income of an

associate proportionate o the equity in the economic shares of such associates, In accordance with

the equity method.

Other Income. These are recognized when there are incidental economic benefits, other than the
usual business operations, that will flow to the Company and can be measured reliably.

xpense Recognition

Expense Recognition

Bxpenses are recogaized when these are incurred.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded in Philippine peso by applying 1o the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between thie Philippine peso and the foreign cursrency
at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are restated using the closing exchange rate at the reporting date. All differences are
taken to profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ncome with the exception
of differences on foreign currency exchange borrowings that provide a hedpe against a net
investment in a foreign entity. These are recorded as part of other comprehensive income and
taken to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognized in net
loss in the consolidated statemant of comprehensive income. Tax charges and credits attributable
to exchange rate differences on those borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Non-monetary
itemns measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date
when the fair value was determined. Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on

the acquisition are treated as assets and Jiabilities of a foreign operation and translated at'the

closing exchange rate.

The “Share in cumulative translation adjustiments of an associate” account also inchides the
he financial

Company's share in transiation adjusiments, under the current rate method, on t
statements of Legend International Resort HK. (LIR-HK) Limited, before the Company

discontinued using the equity method of accounting for its investments in LIR-HK (see Note 11).

Income Taxes

AIDRAI Y S e

Current Tax. Current income tax assels and current income tax liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the armount expecled Lo be recovered from or paid Lo the tax authority.
r subsiantively

The tax rates and tax laws used to compuie the amount are those that are enacted 0
enacted at the reporting datc.

N
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Deferred Tax. Deferred tax i provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
reporting date-betweel the tax bases of assels and liabilities and their carrying amounts for

financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all dedugtible temporary differences and carryforward
benefit of unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it 18 probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
carryforward penefits of unused NOLCOC can be utilized, except:

« where the deferred tax assel relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an agset or liability ina transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss; and

»  inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and

associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets 10 be utijized. Unreco onized deferred tax assels are reassessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable

profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year wher the
asset is reajized or the liability is settled wased on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if & legally enforceable right exists 1o offset current
tax assets against current tax Jiabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and

the same tax authority.

Value-Added Tax (VAT). Revenues, eXpenses, assets, and liabilities are recognized net of the
amount of VAT except:

rred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation

«  where the tax incu
jon of the asset or

authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisit
as part of the expense jtem as applicable; and
«  receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The carrying vaiue of Input VAT is included under “Receivables and others” account in the
consolidated stalement of financial position (see Note 9).

Provisions
Provisions are yecognized when the Compagny has a present obligation (legal or canstruct
sent; it is probabie thal an outflow of resources embodying economic benefils will

result of a past e
be required to settle the obligation; and, a reliable estimale can be made of the amount of the

obligation. When the Company expects some of all of a provision 0 be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement i recognized as & separate asset but only when the

is virtually certain. The expense relating 10 aly provision is presented as part of
profit or loss in the consolidated statermnent of comprehensive income, net of any reimbursement.
I the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current

A

jve) as a
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pretax rate tha reflects, where appropriale, the risks specific to the liability, Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the congolidated financial statements. They are

disciosed in the notes 10 consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits i remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial staiements but are disclosed in the notes 10 consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events afler the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at

the reporting period (adjusting events), if any, are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
consolidated financial statements when material.

Earnings (Loss) per Share
Earnings (Loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighied average

number of issued and outstanding common shares during the year after deducting treasury shares,
if any.

Business Segments
The Company's operating businesses are organized and mana ged separately according to the
nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business

unit that offers different products. .

Segment Assets and Liabilities. Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and
consist principally of operating cash, receivables, real estate for sale, club shares, other equity
shares, investment properties and property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of accounts

payable and other liabilities. Segment assels and liabilities do not inclnde deferred income (axes,
investments and advances, and porrowings.

Inter-segment Transactions. Segment revenue, segment SXpenses, and segment performance
‘nclude transfers among business segments. The transfers, if any, are accounted for at competitive
market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar products. Such transfers are eliminated

upon consolidation.

7. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial stalements requires management to make

judgments, estimales, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, SXpenses,
assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, al the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment in the future to the carrying amount of the asset or lability affected.

Judgments and estimales are continually evaluated and are based on experience and other factors,
including expectations of future evenls that are to believe L0 he reasonable under the

circumstances.
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The Company believes that the following represents a SUITUNATY of these significant judgments and
estimaies and assumptions and related impact and 2ssociated risks in its financial statements.

Judgments
In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made judgment, apatt from

those involving estimatians, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the consolidated financial statements.

Assel Acquisition. In 2014, the Company acquired 100% ownership interest in PLAL Management
considered the substance of the assets and activities of the acquired entity and assessed that the
acquisition of a subsidiary does not represent 8 business, but rather an acquisition of an intangible
assel, the subsidiary being just the grantee of the provisional license from Philippine Amusement
and Gaming Corporation’s, or PAGCOR, (see Note 10). The cost of the acquisition is allocated to
the assets and liabilities acquired pased upon their relative fair values, and no goodwill or deferred

tax is recognized.

Acquisition of POSC. As discussed in Note 12, the PLC acquired 34.5% interest in POSC as part
of its overall strategy to engage in the gaming industry. Based on management’s judgment, PLC's
investment gives PLC significant infiuence over POSC as evidenced by more than 20% voting

interest.

The carrying value of investment in POSC amounted to P1,552.6 million as ai December 31,2014
(s2e Note 12)..

Estimates and Assumptions:
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 10 the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Delermination of Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. PFRS requires certain
financial assets and liabilities to be carried and disclosed at fair value, which requires extensive
use of accounting estimates and judgments. While significant components of fair value
measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates,

interest rates, volatility rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Company

utilized a different valuation methodology. Any changes in the assumptions could affect the fair
value of these financial assets and liabilities.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, are
disclosed in Note 21.

Determination of Fair Value of Financial Assets Noi Quoted in an Active Market, The Comparzy
classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted or not in an
active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted inan active
market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available, and
whether those prices represent actual and regularly accruing market transaction in an arm’s-length

basis.

The fair values of the Company’s investments in unquoled shares cannot be reasonably

determined as there is no available reference Lo ils market.

The carrying value of investments in unquoted shares amounted to £1,000.0 million as at
December 31, 2013 (see Note 11). In 2014, the 1 billion preferred shares were redeemed by Belle.

AT
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Determination of Impairment of Receivables. The Company maintains allowance for doubtful
accounts al 2 level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The
\evel of this allowance is cvaluated by the management on the basis of factors that affect the
collectability of the accounts, These factars include, but not limited to, the length of relationship
with the customers, the customer’s payment behavior and known market factors.

The Company reviews the allowance ona continuous basis. Accounts that are specifically
identified Lo be potentially uncollectible are provided with adequate allowance through charges to
income in the form of provision for doubtful accounts. Factors considered in individual
assessment are payment history, past due status and term. A provision is also established as a
certain percentage of recetvables not provided with specific reserves, This percentage is based on
a collective assessment of historical collection, changes in counterparty payment terms and other
factors that may affect the Company’s ability to collect payments.

The amount and timing of recorded provision for doubtful accounts for any period would differ if
the Company made different judgments or utilized different estimates. An increase in the
Campany’s allowance for doubtful accounts would increase the recorded general and

administrative expenses and decrease its current assets,

Provision for doubtful accounts on receivables recognized in 2014 amounted to 2340.7 million,
No provision recognized in 2013 and 2012. Allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to

£497.7 million and 287.0 million as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, The aggregate
carrying values of receivables amounted to 250,28 million and £12.34 million as at

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 9).

Determination of Commencement of Amortization of Gaming License, The Company’s gaming
license {“License™) will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the License which is
concurrent with PAGCOR congressional franciise sef to expire in 2033, The amortization of the
License commenced on December 14, 2014, the effectivity of the Notice to Commence Casino
Operations granted by PAGCOR which replaced the provisional license (see Note 10}

Evaluation of Impairment of AFS Fi inancial Assets. The Company determines that AFS financial
assets are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below
its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The Company determines that a
deciine in fair vatue of greater than 20% of cost is considered to be a significant decline anda
decline for a peried of more than 12 months is considered to be a prolonged decline. This
determination of whal is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the
Company svaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in share price for quoted equities,
In addition, AFS financial assets are considered impaired when management believes that future
cash flows generated from the investment is expected to decline significantly. The Comypany’s
management makes significant estimmates and assumptions on the future cash flows expected and
the appropriate discount sate to determine if impairment exists. impairinent may alsc be

appropriate when there is evidence of delerioration in the financial health of the investee, industry

and sector performance.

No provision for impairment loss was recognized in 2014 and 2013. In 2012, the Company
recognized an impairment loss amounting to B1,585.1 milkion. However, as discussed in Note 11,
the Company implemented the cancellation of the LIR shares and therefore reversed the
impairment loss recognized in prior years ol the shares amounting to £1,559.8 milljon. Moreover,

impairment loss on golf club shares amounting to B83.6 million was likewise reversed in 2014 as a

result of sale. The aggregate carrying values of AFS financial assels amounted to 2489.8 million

and 21,580.8 million as at December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively. Allowance for impairment on
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AFS financial asset amounted 10 P516.6 million B2,160.0 million as at December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively (see Note 11).

Determination of Impairmen! of Nonfinancial Assels. The Company assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all nonfinancial assets at sach reporting date. Investment
property 18 tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amount may not be

recoverable. Determining the value of these nonfinancial assets, which requires the determination

of future cash flows expected to be generaied from the continued use and ultimate disposition of
such assets, requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect
the consolidated financial statements. Future events could cause the Company 10 concinde that
such nonfinancial assets are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material

adverse impact on the Company’s financial position and performance,

No provision for impairment loss on investment properties, property and equipment and other
current asset was recognized in 2014, 2013 and 2012. The aggregate camwying value of investment
properties amounted to 285.5 miliion and £394.2 million as at December 31,2014 and 2013,
respectively (see Notes 13 and 19). Property and equipment shown under “Other noncurrent
assets” had an aggregate value of 2(.40 million as at December 31, 2014.

ed at each reporting date

Realizability of Input VAT, The carrying amount of input VAT is review
& will be no available

and reduced to the extent that such input VAT will not be realized as ther
output VAT to be applied.
at VAT is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The

¢ form of provision for probable loss on
period would therefore differ

based on the judgment or estimates made. An increase in the allowance for probabie loss on input
VAT would increase the Company’s recorded expenses and decrease current assets.

The carrying value of inp

Input VAT, included under “Receivables and others”, was provided with allowance for probable
losses amounting to £11.0 miliion and B2.1 million as at December 31,2014 and 2013,
respectively (see Notes 9 and 17). Provision for probable loss on input VAT amounted to

28 9 million and 0.2 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Asseis. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences and unused NOLCO to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. Significant management
judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning

sirategies.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to 2147.4 million and 2510.1 million as at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 18).

Determination of Retiremen! Expense. The Campany follows the minimum requirements set forth

by RA No. 764} covering all regular employees. The Company’s cost and obligation to make

payments to employees are recognized during the employees’ period of service. The cost and

obligation are measured using the projected unit credit method, assuming a certain percent of
average salary increase using the current market yield for government securities. The benefits are
based on employees’ projected salaries and length of service. While it is believed that the
Company’s assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in actial
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experience or significant changes in assumptions may materially affect the Company’s retirement

expense and liability.
Retirement liability amounted to £1.0 million as at December 31, 2014.

Evaluation of Legal Contingencies. The Company recognizes provision for possible claims when
it is determined that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of the claim can be
reasonably estimated. The determination of reserves required, if any, is based on analysis of such
individual issue, often with the assistance of outside lega} connsel.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2014 2013

Cash on hand and in banks £473,008,345 2025,039
Short-term deposits 2,219,023,228 —
$2,692,121,573 £925,03%

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Shori-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income garned from cash in banks and shori-term deposits amounted to 6.5 million in

2014, The amount of interest income in 20173 and 2012 is insignificant.

Receivables and Others

This account consists oft

2014 2013
Loan assels P422,341,815 BR1,627,975
Accounts receivable (see Notes 16 and 23) 38,809,095 -
Advances to related parties (see Note 19) 16,824,700 17,692,279
Input VAT and Others 18,555,728 15,920,525

496,531,338 115,240,779

Less allowance for doubtful accounts and probable

loss on inpui VAT 438,730,621 89,038,980

P57,800,517 £26,201,799

Receivables
Loan assets pertain to the following:

(a) Parent Cdmpany’s acquisition of Legend International Resort H.X. (LIR-HK) Limited’s loan
from Union Bank of the Philippines for a tola] copsideration of P81.6 million (see Note 11);

and
(b) Parent Company’s receivable from Metroplex amounting to 340.7 million as a result of the

compensation to parties who were currently in possession of the shares in connection with the
canceliation of the remaining 1,000,000,000 undelivered PLC shares (see Note 11).

ance as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

QTR

The loan assels were fully provided with allow
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The terms and conditions of advances to related parties are disclosed in Naote 19.

Others
Others mainly pertain to input VAT amounting to 211.0 million and 29,9 million as at

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, with allowance for probable loss amounting to

N

S

£11.0 million and ®2.1 million as at December 31, 2014 and

Movement of allowance for doubtful accounts foliows:

2013, respectively.

2014 2013

Balance at beginning of year 286,977,008 86,977,098
Provision for doubtful accounts (see¢ Note 17) 340,713,840 —
Balance at end of year £427,690,938 B36,577.098

Movement of allowance for probable loss on input VAT is as follows:

2014 2013

Balance at beginning of year 22,061,882 81,804,945
Provision for probable losses (see Note 17) 8,978,001 256,937
Rzlance at end of year £11,035,383 »2,061,882

10. Intangible Asset
Intangible asset pertains to the “ jcense” granted by PAGCOR for which PLAI is a-co-licensee to
operate integrated resors, including casinos. The License runs concurrent with PAGCOR’s
Congressional Franchise, set to expire in 2033 (see Note 23).
The amortization of the intangible asset on the License staried on December 14, 2014, the
effectivity of the Notice to Commence Casino Operations granted by PAGCOR. For the ysar
ended December 31, 2014, amortization of intangible recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income amounted to 48.6 million (see Note 7.
11, Avaitable-for-Saic Financial Assets
AFS financial asséts consist of the following:
2014 2013
Quoted shares:
Belle - common shares (see Note 19) P487,940,069 £490,939,700
Golf club shares (see Note 19) 1,780,000 89,80:0,000
Others 70,000 70,000
489,790,069 580,809,700
Ungquoted shares: ‘
Belle - preferred shares (see Note 2) - 1,000,000,000
Others 11,100 11,100
11,100 1,000,011,100

P489,801,169 PRI ,580,820,800

AT
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Movements of this account are as follows:

2014 2013

Cost:
Balance at beginning of year £3,366,556,838 B3 ,366,556,838
Cancellation of Swap Agreement (1,559,847,304) -
Redemption of preferred shares (1,000,000,000) -
Disposal during the year (198,000,000} -

Balance at end of year 608,709,534 3,366,556,838

Curmutalive unrealized mark-to-market gain

on AFS financial assets:
Balance at beginning of year 374,270,753 395,071,490

Net increase (decrease) during the year 23,420,369 (20,800,737)
Balance at end of year 307,691,122 374,270,753

Accumulated impairment loss:

Balance at beginning of year (2,160,006,791) (2,160,006,791)
Fair value change due to recovely of

previous impairment 1,643,407,304 -
Balance at end of year (516,599,487 (2,160,006,791)

B489,801,169 B1,580,820,800

There are no quoted market prices for the unlisted shares of stock and there are 1o other reliable
sources of their fair values, therefore, these are carried at cost, net of any impairment loss.

Belle
The investment in cormunon shares of Belle is carried at market value.

The Cotnpany’s investment in preferred shares is entitled to 9.75% cumulative dividend per
annum. This investment and its accurmulated unpaid dividend are the subjects of a settiement
agreement entered into between PLC and Belle on August 28, 2009, as amended in 2013 and 2014

(see Note 19).

As discussed in Note 2, Belie preferred shares were redecmed for 1.0 billion cash (see Note 19).

Golf Club Shares

In accordance with the Settlement Agreement executed vetwsen PLC and Belle in 1997, PLC
received 220 shares of Tagaytay Midland Golf Club, Inc. (“TMGCI"). In 2012, PLC recognized
provision for impairment on the club shares amounting to #83.6 million in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

In 2014, PLC sold to Belle the 220 shares in TMGCI for a consideration of 2198.0 million
(see Note 2). Impairment loss recognized in 2012 atnounting to 83.6 million was reversed

accordingly.

Metro Manila Turf Club ( MMTC)

MMTC is involved in the establishment, operation and maintenance of stadium, arenas, tracks,
turf and other facilities for the conduct of any and al} kinds of sports and games. On

Tuly 25, 1994, MMTC was granied a 25-year franchise to consiruct, operate and maintain a
racetrack for horse racing in the city of Caloocan. An amendment 10 the franchise to operate in
the province of Batangas, Cavite, Laguna and Rizal was approved by the Congress of the

Philippines on June 9, 1997,
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Belle and PLC partially sold their ownership i MMTC’s capital siock in 2009 to a group of
private investors, thereby reducing Belle and PLC’s ownership as at December 31, 2009 from
42.5% and 45% to 8.75% and 3.75%, respectively.

As a result of the Company’s 108s of significant influence over MMTC, the investment was
reclagsified and presented in the consolidated staternents of financial position as AFS financial

assets effective December 31, 2009.

Legend International Resort K, Limited
Tn 1997, PLC (then Sinophil Corporation), logether with Belle (then a 32% shareholder) entered

into a Swap Agreement with Paxell Limited and Metroplex Berhad (both Malaysian compartlies,
collectively referred o as “Metroplex™) whereby PLC issued 3,870,000,000 of its common shares
in exchange for 46,381,600 shares of Legend International Resort H.K. Limited (LIR-HK), &
Hong Kong-based compaty, which is a subsidiary of Metroplex.

On August 23, 2001, a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was entered into by and among Belle,
PLC, Metroplex and LIR-HK rescinding the Swap Agreement and cancelling ali obligations stated
therein and reversing all the transactions as well as returning all the objects thereof in the

following manner:

a. Metroplex shall surrender the certificates of PLC shares held by them in relation 1o the Swap
Agreement. Belie shall then cause the reduction of the capital stock of PLC to the extent
constituting the PLC shares of stock surrendered by Metroplex and the cancellation and
delisting of such shares from the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

b. PLC shall surrender the LIR-HK shares back to Metroplex.

In view of such definite plan to rescind the Swap Agreement through the MOA or other means,
PLC discontinued using the equity method in accounting for its investment in LIR-HK starting

from LIR-HK s fiscal year beginning February 1, 1999.

On February 18, 2002, the stockhoiders approved the cancellation of 3,870,000,000 shares held by
Metroplex. However, Metroplex failed to deliver the stock certificates for cancellation covering
the 2,000,000,000 shares of their total shareholdings. PLC again presenied Lo its stockholders the
reduction of its authorized capital stock to the extent of 1,870,000,000 shares, which were already
delivered by Metroplex, On June 3, 2005, the stockholders approved the cancellation and
delisting of the 1,870,000,000 shares. On March 28, 2006, the SEC formally approved PLC’s
application for the capital reduction and cancellation of the 1,870,000,000 PLC shares. The
application to delist the said shares was also approved by the PSE.

As a result of the cancellation of the shares, investment in LIR-FIK was reduced by

£72,807.8 miilion in 2006. The corresponding decrease in capital stock and additional paid-in
capital, and share in cumulative translation adjustments of an associate amounted Lo
P1,870.0 million, £1,046.9 million and £]09.1 million, respeciively.

In 2007, PLC acquired LIR-HK s loan from Union Bank of the Philippines which was secured by
the 1,000,000,000 shares of PLC held by Metroplex for a lota! consideration of

2816 million. Upon acquisition, an application for capital reduction and cancellation of
1,000,000,000 PLC shares was filed with the SEC after obtaining stockhokders’ approval.

On June 24, 2008, upon obtaining the approval of the SEC, the 1,000,000,000 PLC shares inthe
name of Metroplex wete cancelled. As aresult, investment in LIR-HK was reduced by
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R1,501.5 million in 2008. The corregponding decrease in capital stock, additional paid-in capital
and share in cumulative translation adjustments of an associate amounted to 21,000.0 million,
£559.8 million and £58.3 miikion, respectively. In 2009, PLC applied with the SEC for further
decreage of its authorized capital stock for 1,000,000,000 shares. This application was approved
on July 9, 2009 by the SEC. However, PLC did not effect such decrease in anthorized capital
stock as these cannot be surrendered for cancellation (see Note 15).

In 2009, Metroplex filed before the Court of Appeals (CA) to review the Order of the SEC
denying their petition to nullify the approval of the reduction of the capital siock of the Parent
Company. Petition was elevated to the Supreme Court (SC) after the CA sustained the SEC ruling
(see Notes 7 and 19). The deal was seuttled when the remaining 1,000,000,000 undelivered PLC
shares (hereinafter referred to as the “Shares”) are being heid by another creditor, Evanston Assel
Holdings Pie. Ltd (“Evanston™), a8 collateral for loans obtained by Metroplex. Metroplex was
previously negotiating for the release of such pledge to be able to carry out the terms of the MOA.
However, during 2012, PLC was informed by Evanston that they had undertaken foreclosure
proceedings on the Shares. While Evanston has stated willingness to negotiale with PLC towards
the transfer of the Shares, there is no assurance that PLC will be able to acquire the Shares from
Evanston. Thus, PLC recognized fulj impairment loss on its investment in LIR-HK in view of the
then uncertainty of implementing the MOA rescinding the Swap Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, cognizant of the fact that whoever had possession of the Shares
would be dispossessed of its property by reason of the approval of the decrease in capita! which
implies the.cancellation of said shares, PLC exerted earnest efforts to have the SEC revoke-its
approval of the third decrease in capital. However, SEC continued to deny any petition on the

following grounds:

(i) the documents submitted by appellant in support of its application for the decrease of capital
stock, were all complete and regular on its face;
(if) there was ne allegation of fraud, actual or constructive, nor misrepresentation in its application

for decrease of authorized capital stock.

Or June 30, 2013, PLC filed 2 Memorandum of Appeal with the SEC to appeal the denial of the
petition.

On April 22, 2014, PLC fited with the SEC a Notice of Withdrawal of the Memorandum of
Appeal filed on June 20, 2013 and proceeded to effect the cancellation of the shares and
corapensated the parties who were in possession of the remaining 1,009,000,000 PLC shares. In
view of this, PLC reinstated the value of its investment in LTR -HK and through reversal of the
impairment loss recognized in prior year of P1,559.8 million together with the reversal of the
capital stock and related additional paid-in capital. Consequently, the related share in the
cumulative translation adjustments of B58.3 miliion was recycled to profit and loss.
Correspondingly, PLC recoghized a receivable from Metroplex for £340.7 million which was the

cost of implementing the MOA rescinding the Swap Agreement and the cancellation of the said

Shares (see Nole 13).
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12. Investment in an Associate

On July 22, 2014, PLC executed several Deeds of Sales of Shares with Belle and certain of its
subsidiaries for the acquisition of 101,668,953 POSC common shares at a subscription price of
215 per share equivalent 10 34.5%, ownership interest in POSC for a total consideration of
B1,525,034,310.
Investment in POSC is accounted for under the equity method.

Acquisition costs B},525,034,310
Accumulated equity in nel earnings:

Balance at beginning of year

Equity in net earnings for the year

Share ip the other comprehensive loss of associate

accounted for using the equity method (3,989,546)

31,521,474

Balance at end of year 27,531,928
P1,552,566,238

Condensed financial information of POSC as at Decernber 31, 2014 follows:
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income*: ‘
Revenues P1,731,092,039
Cost and expenses 1,202,281,122
QOther income 7,784,417
Net income 366,530,090
Total comprehensive income 354,966,190
Dividends received by PLC from POSC -
Consolidated statement of financial position:
Current assets 1,771,168,578
Nongurrent assets 580,392,447
Current liabilities** 458,632,193
Noncurrent liabilities 04,430,944
Net assets atiributable to shareholders of POSC 1,798,497,838
PLC’s ownership in POSC 34.5%
PLC’s share in net assets of POSC J 620,481,771
Provisional goadwill ' 932,084,467
Carrying amount of PLC’s investment in POSC P1,552,566,238

*Based on full year operations of POSC.
s*Eyeluding siatuiory pavables amounting to P62,287,080 in 204.

The fair value of the ne! assets of POSC is provisionally determined as at December 31, 2014.
Adjustments to those provisional fair valies as a result of completing the initial accounting shall
be made within 12 months from the acquisition date.

AR



\'\

13,

Investment Properties

This account includes land received from the spin-off of the real estate properties of MMTC, a

former associale amounting Lo $285.5 mitlion.

Belle Bay City’s major development project s a 19-hectare mixed-use real estate development
along Roxas Boulevard, on a reciaimed land along Manila Bay. On June 27, 2003, the BOD of
Belle Bay City approved the resolution to amend its articles of incorporation to shorien the
corporale ferm from 50 years to end on fanuary 31, 2004. The stockholders of Belle Bay City
ratified the resolution on July 10, 2003, On January 27, 2005, the SEC appraved the application

for dissolution of Belle Bay City.

In November.2012, the Company received land with an area of 4 348 square mefers from Belle
Bay City as liquidating dividend. The receipt of the land from Belle Bay City resulted in the
cancellation of the Company’s nel investments in Belle Bay City amounting to £73.2 million as
wel] ag its advances amounting (0 $2.2 miliion. As a result of the liquidation of its investments in
and advances to Belle Bay City, the Company received a Jand amounting to 2108.7 million,
presented under “Investment properties” account in the consolidated statement of financial
position and recognized in the 2012 consolidated statement of comprehensive income a gain on
liquidating dividend amounting to 233.3 million. The liquidating dividend received from Belle
Bay City is valued based on determinable fair value at the date of distribution. In July 2014, land

with a cost of 2108.7 million was sold to Belle (see Note 19).

The carrying value of the investment properties approximates the aggregate fair value as of

December 31, 2014 and 2013. The fair values were determined based on a cost approach
valuation technique using current rmaterial and labor costs and categorized under Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy. The current use of all investment properties s their highest and best use.

14,

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

2014 2013
Accrued expenses 55,839,115 £353,143,407

Advances from Belle (see Note 19 21,526,177

Withholding taxes payable 1,460,051 72,223
Other payables 316,164 105,873
79,141,507 R53,321,503

Accrued expenses represent mainly accrual for professional fees and other general and
adminisirative expenses. These are payable on demand.
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15, Equity
Preferred Stock :
As al December 31, 2014 and 2013, PLC has not issued any prefeired siock out of the authorized

6,000,000,000 shares with par value of 20.25 and 21.00, respectively . Under the provision of the
Parent Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the rights and features of the preferred stocks shall be

determined through a resolution of the BOD prior to issuance.

Common Stock

Number of Shares

2014 2013 2012
Authorized 37,630,000,000 10,130,000,000 10,130,000,000
Par value P0.25 P1.00 ?1.00
Issued:

Balance at beginning of year 3,096,990,785 3,006,890,785 3,096,440,785

Cancellation of Swap Agreement

(see Note 11) (1,000,000,000)

450,000

Issuances 29,343,573,915 100,000
Balance at end of year 31,440,564,700 3,096,990,785 3,(196,890,785
Subscribed 186,745,300 4,830,3 16,215 4,830,419,215
31;627,310,000 7,927,310,000 7,927,310,000

The following summarizes the information on the Parent Company’s registration of securities

under the Securities Regulation Code:

Authorized Number of Issue/
Date of SEC Approval Shares Shares Issued  Offer Price
Common stock
1995 100,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 0.01
September 30, 1996 100,000,006,000 1,000,000,000 (.01
1997 (198,000,000,000) - -
1997 12,000,000,000 §,797,310,000 1.00
March 28, 2006 (1,870,000,000} (1,870,000,{)00) 1.00
June 24, 2008 (1,000,000,000) (1,000,000 ,000) 1.00
July 9, 2009 {1,000,000,000) (1,000,000,000} 1.00
September 5, 2014 27,500,000,000 24,700,000,000 0.25
Total — Commaon stock 37,630,000,000 31,627,310,000
Preferred stock
- 1.00

1997

6,000,000,000

4,000,000,000

Total - Preferred stock

shares of the Company’s capital stock were offered and sold to the

In 1995, 25,000,000 primary
28, 1995, the Company's shares of stock were formalty listed in

public at par value. On August
the small board of the PSE.

On September 30, 1996, the SEC approved the increase in the Company’s authorized capital stock
from B1,000.0 million, divided into 100,000,000,000 shares at P0.01 par value, 0
£2,000.0 million, divided into 200,000,000,000 shares with the same par value.
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On March 1G, 1997, the stockholders approved the increase in the Company’s authorized capital
siock from £2,000.0 million, divided into 200,000,000,000 shares at B0.01 par value a share,

to £20,000.0 million, divided into 14,000,000,000 common shares and 6,000,000,000 preferred
shares both with par value of 21,

On February 18,2002, the stockholders approved the cancellation of 3,870,000,000 shares held by
one of the Parent Company's shareholders, of these ghares a total of 2,870,000,000 shares have
been cancelied and delisted in 2006 and 2008 (see Note 11).

On March 28, 2006, the SEC approved the reduction of the Company’s authorized capital stock by
1,870,000,000 shares to 18,130,000,000 shares divided into 12,130,000,000 common shares and

6,000,000,000 preferred shares (see Note ] 1.

On june 24, 2008, the SEC formally approved the Company’s application for further reduction
and cancellation of authorized capital stock by 1,000,000,000 shares resulting in total authorized
capital stock of 17,130,000,000 shares divided into 11,130,000,000 common shares and

6,000,000,000 preferred shares (see Note | D).

On July 9, 2009, the SEC approved the Company's application for further reduction of authorized
capital stock by 1,000,000,000 shares resuiting in total authorized capital stock of 1 6,130,000,000
shares, divided into 10,130,000,000 common ghares and 6,000,000,000 preferred ghares

(see Note 11).

As discussed in Note 11, on April 22, 2014, PLC filed with the SEC a Notice of Withdrawal of the
Memorandum of Appeal filed on June 20, 2013 and proceeded to effect the cancellation of the
remaining 1,000,000,000 shares te fully implement the MOA rescinding the Swap Agreement

with Metroplex and LIR-HK.

Equity Restructuring
On May 29, 2014, the SEC approved the PLC’s application for equity restructuring.

. Reduction in par value per share from 216,130.0 million divided into 10,130,000,000 common
shares and 6,000,000,000 preferred shares both with the par value of £1.00 per share to
24,032.5 million divided inte 10,130,000,000 common shares and 6,000,000,000 preferred

shares both with a par value of £0.25 per share,

* »  Application of the resulting additional paid-in capital amounting to R2 614,5 million o

partially wipe oul the Parent Company’s deficil of B3,543.4 million as at December 31, 2013.
On June 20, 2014, Belle and PLC entered into a Subscription Agreement for 24,700,000,000
common shares of PLC at a subscription price of R0,369 per share or & total subscription of
£9,114,300,000 thereby increasing Belle’s ownership interest in PLC to 90%. Subscription
payments Were received in July 2014.

On July 18, 2014, PLC’s BOD and stockholders unanimously approved the amendment to the
Articles of Incorporation for the increase in authorized capital stock from »4,032,500,000 divided
inte 10,130,000,000,000 common shares with par value of 20.25 per share and 6,000,000,000
preferred shares with par value of 20,25 per share, to £10,907,500,000 divided into
37,630,000,000 common shares with par value of P0.25 per share and 6,000,000,000 preferred
shares with par value of £0.25 per share. The application for the increase in authorized capital
siock was approved by the SEC on Seplember 5, 2014,
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Subscription Regeivabie
On October 27, 2014 the BOD of the Company approved for the call for the payment in full of the

unpaid subscription of its capita) stock on of vefore December 11, 2014. The Company was able
to collect 24,777.1 million for 4,643,573,915 comimon shares. The BOD also approved that unpaid
subscription after December 11, 2014 shall be subject to interest of 12% per apnum. Subscription
receivable amounted to £185.5 million and 24 062.6 million as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

regpectively.

Cn January 13, 2015, the BOD approved that Under Section 67 of the Corporation Code, all
bed which shall remain unpaid after 30 days (January 10, 2015) shall
become automatically delinquent and shall be made subject of a delinquency sale. Delinquency
qale was scheduled in accordance with Section 68 of the Corporation Code on March 2, 2015
unless the delinquent shareholders shall pay the full amount due from their subscriptions, plus
interest and their proportionate chare in the cost of the sale. On March 2, 2015, all delinquent

Q ghares have been sold.

Conunon shares subscri

Parent Company Shares Held by a Subsidiary
ECRI holds 156,530,000 common shares of the Parent Company with a cost of 2477.3 million as
at Decerber 31, 2013 and 2012. These arc presented as “Cogt of Parent Compary shares held by

2 subsidiary” and are treated as a reduction in equity.

During the year, FCRI sold all the 156,530,000 common shares of PLC at B1 .65 per share
resulting in a loss of ©919.0 million recognized 23 part of *Other Reserves” in the equify section

of the 2014 consolidated statement of financial position.

)

16. Gaming Revenue Share

PLAI started to realize Its gaming revenue share following the soft opening of the City of Dreams
Manila iniegrated resort and casino operations on December 14, 2014. Gaming revenue share is
determined as follows:
U Gaming revenue share {Gross)
Less PAGCOR Jicense fee
Garming revenue share {Nel)

P45,674,116
(6,865,021)
P38,809,095

As at December 31, 2014, the gaming revenue share wag recognized as accounts receivable from

Melco (see Note 9). Such amount has been fully collected as at March 5, 2015.

AR
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17. General and Administrative Expenses

This acecount consists of:

2014 2013 2012
Provision for doubtful accounts and

probable loss on input VAT

(see Note 9) P349,691,841 £256,937 2141,562
Depreciation and amortization*

(see Note 10) 48,827,654 - -
Taxes and licenses 26,676,518 3,061,835 2,190,820
Professiona! and service fees

(see Notes 19 and 23) 23,833,011 2,236,832 2,025,961
Representation and transportation 5,245,618 580,919 574,924
Transportation and travel 4,907,707 - -
Salaries, wages and benefits 4,501,906 1355472 1,341,485
Commission expense 1;525,034 - -
Outside services 1,022,032 - -
Placement and listing fee 736,336 - -
Association dues 640,565 773,943 -
Insurance 284,279 389,855 498,837
Miscellaneous 1,098,992 76,917 140,089

£468,991,793 28,735,710 6,913,678

*Afso includes depreciation expeise of property and equipment presented pnder SOther noncurren asseis”.

Miscellaneous pertains to office supplies, communication expenses, bank charges and others.

18.

Income Taxes

The Company’s provision for current income tax amounted to 23,1 mitlion in 2014. The
Company is in & tax loss position in 2013 and the Company’s income items mainly consist of
income subject to final tax. In 2012, the Company’s provision for income tax amounted to P9.4
million which includes capital gains tax (CGT) paid by the Company under protest for the transier
of land from Belle Bay City amounting to 26.5 million. The payment of CGT was made for the
sole purpose of facilitating the prompt transfer of title from Belle Bay City Lo the Company. The
Company believes thal the imposition of CGT is improper because the transfer was not made in

the ordinary course of business but by operation of law in view of the ongoing liquidation process
of Belle Bay City.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, PLAI clected to use Optional Standard Deduction (OSD)
in computing its taxable income,

PLAI is not yet subject to minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) since its commercial operations
comumenced onty in December 2014. The imposition of MCIT begins on the fourth taxable year
immediately following the year in which PLAI commenced its business operations.
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The reconciliation of the provision (benefit) for income tax computed at statutory income tax rate
on income (loss) before income tax 1o the provision (benefit) from income tax as shown in the
consolidated statcments of comprehensive income is as follows:

2013 2012

2014
$403,218,705 (22,620,400) (®467,602,998)

Tncomne tax computed at statutory tax rate

income tax effect of:
Change in unrecognized deferred tax

assels (362,679,816) 2,256,650 470,224,883
income not subject to income tax (45,350,972) - -
Nondeductible expemnses 19,253,281 337,382 6,736,946
Equity share in net earnings of an

associate (9,456,442) - -
Excess of itemized deduction over OSD 2,040,905 - -
Interest subject to final tax {1,939,605) (313) (348)
Expired NOLCO 31,310 26,681 18,206

$s5,117,366 B- R0 376,689

The components of the Company’s temporary differences and carryforward benefits of NOLCO

for which no deferred tax assets were recognized are as follows:

2014 2013

Allowance Tor doubtful accounts of receivables

and others, excluding allowance for probable 108s
on input VAT (see Note 9) £427,696,767 286,977,098

Allowance for impairment of AFS investments 2,000,000 1 ,587,088,3 16
Allowance for deferred oi} exploration

and development costs 18,377,841 18,377,841
NOLCO 43,224,980 7,795,342
£491,299,588 P1,700,238,597

Deferred tax assels arnounting to P147.4 million and 2510.1 million as at December 31, 2014 and
hat it has no sufficient

2013, respectively, were not recognized since management believes t
taxable income against which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefits

of these assets can be usilized in the future.

In 2012, NOLCO that was claimed as deductions from regular taxable income by the Parent
Company are as follows: ' ’

Year Incurred Expiry Date Arount
2009 December 31, 2012 25,968,650
2010 December 31, 2013 6,312,245
ecember 31,2014 5,410,332

2011 D
217,691,227

MR
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As at December 31, 2014, the Company has the foliowing NOLCO that can be claimed a8

deductions from regular taxable income:

Year Incurred Expiry Date Amount
2012 December 31, 201 ) 279,873
2013 December 31, 2016 7,611,104

2014 December 31, 2017 35,534,003
— P43,224,980

NOLCO amounting to 20,10 million and 20.08 mitlion had expired in 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

19, Related Party Transactions

Related parties are enterprises and individuals that direcily, or indirectly through one of more
intermediaries, control, or are conirolled by, or under cormnimon control with the Company,
including holding companies, and subsidiaries. Associates and individuals owning, directly or

indirectly, an intercst in the voting powel of the Company that gives them significant influence

over the enterprise, kY management personnel, including direciors and officers of the Company
ociated with these

and close members of the family of these individuals and companies ass
te related entities. Transactions betweei related parties are accourted for

individuals‘also‘constim
at arm’s-length prices or o terms similar to those offered to non-related entities inan

economically catnparable marlket.

v

In considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the

relationship, and not merely the legal form.

Settlement Agreement with Belle
On October 7, 1997, PLC subscribed to 1,000,000,000 preferred shares from Belle at
£1.00 per share, with a coupon rate of 9.75% per annui. This investment and its accumulated

unpaid dividend are the subjects of a settlement agresment entered into between PLC and Belle on
August 29, 2009, as amended in 2013.

1 28,2009, a Settlement Agreement (Agreemeni) was execuied between Belle and PLC

On Augus
{0 settle the unpaid accrued dividends and to eventually cancel the preferred shares, subject to the

transfer by Belle to PLC: (1) 220 shares ip TMGCI and (2) 235,583 square meters of developed
d located in Tanauan, Batangas, completion of which is expected within five

Rancho Montana lan
years from the date of the Agreement. The developed Ranche Montana land together with the 220
tR1,092.3 million.

TMGCI shares shall be transferred to PLC at an aggregate value of at leas

ement, Belle transferred the 220 TMGCI shares and
LC, on the other hand,
idends in the form of

Immediately after the execution of the Agre
executed a Deed of Assignment OVer the said TMGCI shares 10 PLC. P
executed a Release, Waiver and Quitctaim (1) accepting the payment of div
220 shares in TMGCL (2) renouncing its rights 1o all past, present and future dividends;

(3) agreeing to the revocation of the coupon rate originally provided for the preferred shares; and,
(4) agreeing 10 the cancellation of all its preferred shares ‘n Belle upon receipt of the developed

Rancho Montang land.
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The TMGCI shares amounting to 2154.0 imillion (net of 244.0 million decline in fair value as at
Degember 31,2009) was recorded as “AFS financial assets” In 2009. The related outstanding
payable (after offsesting the outstanding receivable of 2923 million) as at December 31, 2013
amounting to £105.7 miliion, presented under “Due to Belle Corporation” account in the 2013
consolidaled stalement of financial position, has heen fully settled in 2014,

In March 2013, Belle delivered developed lots with an egsimated value of R65.5 million
ent agset” with corresponding “Due 10 Belle Corporation” in the 2013

consolidated statemant of financial position pending rransfer of title of the developed lots 10 PLC.
Under the Seftlement Agreement, the cancellation of the preferred shares shall be effective only
upon completion of the transfer of the title of the developed properties to PLC.

recognized as “QOther curr

Amendment to Settlement Agreement with Belle
On April 5, 2013, an Amendment to the Qettlement Agreement was executed between Belle and

PLC to modify the composition of its settlement offer for the Preferred Shares. The parties have
agreed on the following amendments:

(a) replacement of the real estate component of the settlement agreement. In Liew of the delivery
of 220 saleable lots in Rancho Montana, Belle undertakes 10 (a) to pay on of before
August 28, 2014, approximately 2100.0 million of the preferred Obligation by way of:

(i) delivery of developed lots within the Tagaytay Highlands—Midiands Complex, with an
aggregate valuation of approximateiy%?S 0 million inclusive of 12% VAT and

registration GOSIS.

(if) payment of all costs and expenses estimated at approximately $25.0 million for the

conversion and fitling of PLC’s properties located at or near Rancho Montana totaling 36

hectares; (b) delivery on OF before August 28, 2019, such number of developed lots in
Rancho Montana having an aggregate value of approximately £794.0 million based on
agreed valuation of $8,000.00 per square meter, exclusive of VAT.

(b} modification of penalty for delay in delivery of Rancho Moniana lots.

On July 22, 2014, Belle and PLC entered into a second Amendment 10 the Settlement Agreemenlt
terminating the obligation under the Settlement Agreement and the related Amendment to the
Settlement Agreement and allowing sale of PLC’s nongaming assets cons isting of TMGCI shares
and developed lots, and redemption of the 1,000,000,000 preferred shares by Belle by way of cash

consideration.

(Gain on sale of developed lots presented as «Other current asset” and land presented as part of
“[nyvestment properties” (see Note 13) amounted to B149.2 million.

Transactions with Retated Parties
1n the ordinary course of business, the Company has transactions with related pasties which

consist mainty of extension or availment of noninterest-bearing advances. The outstanding
balances at year-end are due and demandable. There have been no guarantees provided or

received for any related party cecejvables or payables.
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The amournts included in these {ransactions are as follows:

Dutsinnding
Balanee
Receivables
(Paysbics) Terms
(?5,468,361) Non-interest
bearing, due and

Transaclion
Transaciion Amounts
Advances® 2014 (122,393 156)
(see Notes 9

Related Pany Relationshi
Belle Stackhoider

Condition
Unseoured,
no impairment

and 14} lemandabie
2043 (12,008,133) 16,625,393 Non-interest Unsceured,
bearing, due and no impairment
demandable
Partial 2014 179,014,579 -
redempLion
of preferred
shares
2013 73,361,434 (179,011,579) Mon-interest Unseeured
benring, due and
demandable
op Sale of non- 2014 521 371,43 -
gawming asscels
{see Mote 2}
Paraliax Stockholder Arivances 2014 - 766,884 Non-inlLerest Unseeured,
(sce Nale 9) bearing, duc and ne impairment
demandable
2013 - 166,884 Now-interest Unsceured,
pearing, due and no impairment
demandable
Officers Key management Salaries and 1014 B3 454,400 P
persoancl Wages 2013 2,341,483 o
and £21.5 million advanzes from Belle included under

*Composed of #16.1 ‘mitiion advances fo Belle inclucled wider “Receivables and others”

wjcorued expenses and other curvenl liabilities". \

On September 1
provide services to support the operations of the casino license from P
likewise provide sufficient

functions. Management an
of “Professional and services fees” included under genera

consolidated statements of comprehensive income (sse Note 17).

5, 2014, oAl and Belle entered intc a Service Agreement wherein the latter shall
AGCOR. Belie shall
personnel and other resources for accounting and administrative

d service fees amounting te £7.500,000 in 2014 was presented as part

| and adminisirative expenses in the

putation

20. Basic/Diluted TLarnings (Loss) Per Common Share Com

' As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, basic/diluied losses pel ghare were computed as follows!

2014 2013
Nel income (loss) (a) £1,338,944,984 (®8,734,667)
Weighted average common shares, beginning 7,77(),780,000 7.770,780,000
Cancellation of Swap Agreement (583,333,333) -
Re-issuance of Parent Company’s shares 39,132,500 -
Tssuance of common shares 8,233,333,333 —
Weighted average common shares, end {b) 15,459,912,500 7,770,780,000
Earnings (logs) per common share {(a/b) 2(.0860607 (#0.001 12)

(AR
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91. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Risk Manasement Objectives and Policies and Ga vital Management
The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, receivables
and AFS financial assets. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Company’s operations. The Company has other financial labilities guch as accrued expenses
and other current liabilities which arise directly from 1ts operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The Company is 0t exposed to any other type of market risk, such as foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk, as the Compary has no outstanding forelgn currency-
denominated accounts and interest-bearing other financial liabilities as at December 31, 2014 and

2013,

The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing credit, liquidity and equity price risks

and they are summarized below,

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur 8 loss because its counterparties
failed to discharge their contractual obligations. Credit risk arises from the Company’s financial
assets which are composed of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and others and AFS financial

assets.

s policy that.all customers who wish to trade on credit terims are subject to
credit verification procedures. The Company’s eXposure {0 credjt isk arises from default of the
with 2 maximui exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instrumenis. The

ile, a stockholder, of which outstanding balance
31,2014 and

It is the Company’

Company’s credit risk is concentrated on Be
covers at least 95% and 96% of the Company’s total receivables as at December

2013, respectively.

The table below shows the max Imum exposure to credit risk for the Company’s financial assets,
without taking into account of any collateral and other credit enhancements:

Gross Maximunl Exposure Net Maximum Exposure
2014 2013

2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents $2,692,121,573 £925,039 $1,692,121,573 P425,039
Receivables and others* 57,800,517 17,715,534 57,800,517 17,715,534
ATFS financial assels 439,801,169 1,5%0,820,800 489,801,169 1,58(},820,800
$3,239,723,259 21,599,461,373 ¥3,239,723,259 . »1,598,961,373
65 av at December 31, 2014 and 2013,

"This excindes prepaymenis and ingput val cmounting o wil and 5486,2
respectivefy.

The table below shows the aging analysis of the Company’s financial asseis.

2014

Tast Duc but not Impaired
Neither Past Over1
Due nor Less than 31 Days Yearup o

Empaired 30 days 1o } Year 3 Years Overd Years Tmpaired Tolal
Cash and cosh couivaicits p2,692,821,573 - P 2 B2- P B2,692,121,573

Raceivabics and others:
Loan assels - - - - ~ 422,341,815 422,344,815
Accounts Reccivable 38,809,095 - - - - - 34,809,095

Advances lo relaied
partics 16,524,700 - - - - - 16,824,700
Nontrade and olliers 2,143,466 - - - 23,255 5,319,123 7,515,844
ATFS financial assels 459,801,169 - - 118,908,365 608,709,534
F],ZSQ,‘?GU,DM B B - 123,255 P546,599,303 -‘33‘786,322,561
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2013 )
Past Duc bul nol Impaired
Over |

Neither Past

Due nor Less then 31 Days Year up Lo

Jmpaizcd 30 days ol Yeor 3 Yenrs  Over3 Years Tmpaired Total

Cash and cash equivalents p925,039 B- P [t - R RO235,039
Receivables and olhors:

Loan nssels - - - - - #1,627.975 41,627,975
Advances to relaed

paniss 17,692,279 - - - - 17,692,279

Nonlrade and others™ 626,112 - - 23,235 5,349,123 5,998,490

- - - 1,785,736,038 3,366,556,838

1,580,824,800 -
P1,600,064,230 B— = B
*This excludes prepayments amopmning 1o 8,486,265 as al December 31, 2013.

AFS financial asscls
13,472,800,62)

223,255 71.872.713,136

The table below shows the credit quality of the Company's financial assets that are neither past
due nor impaired based on historical experience with fhe corresponding third partics.

2014
High Grade Medinm Grade Unrated Total
Cash in bank and cash equivalents £2,602,121,573 P - 22,692,121,573
Receivables and others: - - - -
Accounts receivable 38,809,095 - - 38,809,095
Advances to related parties 16,824,700 - - 16,824,700
AFS financial assels 487,940,069 1.783.000 81,100 489,801,169
£3,235,695,437 P1,780.0060 £§1,100 £3,237,556,537

2013
‘ High Grade _ Medium Grade Unrated Total
Cash in bank £025,039 B B #925,039
Receivables and others: - -
Advances lo related parties 17,692,279 - - 17,692,279
QOthers 626,112 - - 626,112
AFS financial assels 1,490,939,700 £9,500,000 £1,100 1,580,820,800

21,510,183,130 £89,800,000 »§1,100 Bl ,600,064.230

High grade financial assets pertain to those receivables from relaied parties or customers that
consistently pay on or before the maturity date while medium grade includes those financial assets

pbeing collected on due dates with an effort of collection.

The Company assessed its cash in bank and cash equivalents a8 high grade since this is deposited
with reputable banks.

Unquoted AFS financial assets in Belle preferred shares is considered as high grade. Quoted AFS
financial assets are assessed based on finapcial status of the counterparty and its current stock
price performance in the market. High grade AFS financial assets consisiently show increasing
stock prices while medium grade AFS financial assets show decline in value of not more than

20%.

Liguidity Risk. Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company may encounter

difficulties in meeting obligations associated with ils accrued expenses and other current
liabilities.

The Company seeks to manage its liguidity profile to be able o finance ils ‘nvestments and pay its
outstanding labilities. To cover its financing requirenents, the Company uses internally

generated funds.

SR



_ 43 -

Liquidity risk i very minimal as al December 31, 2014 since the total current assets far exceeds

the total current liabilities.

Equily Price Risk. Equity price risk is the risk that the fair valne of quoted AFS financial assets
decreases as the resull of changes in the value of individual stocks. The Company’s expostre 10
equity price risk retates primarily to the Company’s quoted AFS financial assets.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 1o @ reasonably possible change in equity price,

with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s equity. The irpact on the Company’s

equity already excludes the impact on transactions affecting the consolidated profit or loss before

income tax.

] 2014 2013
Tncrease Decreast Increase Decrense
in Equity in Equity in Bquity in Equity
Price Price Price Price
Percentage increase (decrease)
in equity price 4.17% (4.17%) 3.65% (3.65%)
Tffect on equity R2,461,236 (2,461,236) 2] 153,582 (2,153,582}

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management 18 10 safeguard ifs ability to continue
as & going concer, 50 that it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and benefits to other

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure i0 reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economniic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment {0 shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue DEW shares, There were
no changes made in the objectives, poticies or processes in 2014 and 2013.

The Company considers the following as its capital.

2014 2013
£7,906,827,500 77.927,310,000
6,946,201,779 2.039,727,799
(185,480,975) (4,962,580,586)

(

Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Subscription receivable

Retained Earnings (deficit) 08,929,502 2,972,488,493)
P15,648,477,806 £2,031,968,720

Fair Value of Financial Assels and Financial Liabilities

Fair value is defined as the amount al which the financial instrument could be exchanged in @

current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s-length transaction, other
than in a forced liquidation or sale. Falr values are obtained from quoted market prices,
discounted cash flow models and option pricing [models, as appropriate.

s of cash and cash squivalents, receivables and others (excluding prepayments

The carryltg value
and input VAT), and accrued expenses and other current liabilities {excluding statutory liabilities)
short-term nature of

and due to Belle Corporatjon 11 2013 approximate their fair values due t0 the
the transactions.

The fair values of AFS financial assels in quoted equity shares ate based oD quoted prices in the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) or ihose shares whose prices are readily available from brokers
or other regulatory agency as al reporting date. There are no quoted market prices for the unlisted
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shares of stock and there are no other reliable sources of their fair valu

carried at cost, net of any impairment 10ss.

The following table provides the quantit
the Company’s assels and liabilities, oth
approximation of fair value, as at December 31, 2014 and 2013

es, therefore, these are

ative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy of
er than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable

2014
Quoted
{Unadjusted} Significant Significant
Prices in Observable Unobservable
Date of  Active Markets Inputs Inputs
Valuation (Lewvel 1 (Level2 {Level 3} Tolal
Assels
Assels measured al fair vaiue
AFS investments « listed December 31,2014 £489,790,069 - 211,100 489,801,169
2013
Quoted
{Unadjusted) Significant Significant
Prices in Observable Unobservable
Dateof  Active Markets Inputs inputs
Valuation {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3} Toial
Assets
Assets measured al fair vatue
AFS investments - listed December 31, 2013 R580,809,700 g P1,000,01 1,100 }11,580.820,800
Lialilities
Liabilities for which fair value is
disciosed:

Payabie arising from

"acquisition of land Deecember 31,2013 -

179,011,579 -

179,011,579

There were no trangfers betwesn fair value measurements in 2014 and 2013.

22. Segment Information

The primary segment reporting format is presented based on business s&

gments in which the

Company’s risks and rates of return are affected predominantty by differcnces in the products and

services provided, Thus, the operating businesses are organjze

according to the nature of the products and services provided, with each s

strategic business unit that, offers different products and serves

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company is organized

d and managed separately

egment representing a
different markets.

into four business segments, which

are investment holding, real estate, public amusement recreation and gaming business.

BNV
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Revenue from the gaming business segient amounting 1o 21§.8 mitlion in 20 14 is solely

ecollectible from its external CustoImer, Melea.

The following illustrate the recongiliations of reportable segment revenues, net profil, assets and
liabilities to the Company’s corresponding amounts:

2014 2013 2012

Net Profit for the Year

Total profit for reportable seginents ¥1,448,759,461
Elimination for intercompany profits (109,81 4,477)
Consolidated net profit £1,338,044,984

(@8,735,710) (71,616,995,647)
_ 58,318,988

(®8,735,710) (?1,558,676,659)

Asscts
Total assets for reportable segments £3,035,904,146 RA8R,099,719 $425,137,195

nvestments and advances 13:263,566,561 1,767,533,930 1,784,732,627
Elimination for intercompany advances and

investments (426,609,935) (188,874,279) (183,211,220)
Consolidated sssls £15,872,860,772 £2,067,659,370 1,026,658,596

Disclosure of the geographical information regarding the Company's revenuses from external

customers and total assets have not been provided since all of the Company’s consolidated
revenues are derived from operations within the Philippines.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of

making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
net income ar 1058 in the

evaluated based on net income or loss and is measurec consistently with
consolidated financial staternents. However, financing (including interest expense and interest
income) and income taxes are managed as @ whole and are not allocated to operating segments.
Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in @ Manner simitar to

transactions with third pariies.

-

23. Significant Contracts and Commitments

Investment Commitment with PAGCOR
The Company and its casino operator 1s required to have an “Investment Commitment” based on

PAGCOR guidelines of US$1.0 billion, of which US$630.0 million shall be invested upon the
opening of the casino and the other US$350.0 million shall be invesied within a period of three (3)
years from the commencement of the casino operations. The Investment Commitment should
comprise of the value of land used for the projects and the construction costs of various facilities

and infrastructure within the site of the project.

The other salient provisions of the License ate: {i) creation of an escrow account of at least

1$$100.0 million to be used exclusively for the project, with a maintaining balance of
US$50.0 million; (1) igsuance of performance pond of B100.0 million to guaraniee the completion
of the project; and (iii) issuance of surety bond of £100.0 million to guarantee the payment 10

PAGCOR of all fees payable under the license granted.

Compliance with the Investment Commitment 18 managed by Belle, except for the maintenance of

an escrow account which was assumed by the casino operalor effective May 2013
Operating Apreement with Melco

On March 13, 2013, the Company, Logether with Belle, entered into an Operating A
MCE Holdings No. 2 (Philippines) Corporation, MCE Holdings (Phi]ippines) Corperation and

N

greement with



Y

C

A
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Meleo. Under the terms of the Operating Agreement, Melco was appointed as the sole and
exclusive operator and manager of the casino development Project.

The Operating Agreement shall be in full force and effect for the period of the PAGCOR License,
unless terminated earlier in accordance with the agreements among the parties,

Pursuant to this agresment, the Company shares from the performance of the casino gaming
operalions.

Advisory Services by AB Leisure Global, Inc. (ABLGD
§il

ABLGI agreed to act inan advisory capacity to the Company and Belie subject 1o certain
timitations for a consideration equivalent 10 percentage of the Company’s income from gaming

revenue share.

Professional fee amounted to $7,075,317 in 2014 presented as part of uprofessional and service
fees” account under general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of

comprehensive InCOMe (see Note 1 7).

e

24. Confingency

The Parent Company is & party to a civil case filed by Metroplex before the CA toreview the
February 26, 2009 Order of the SEC denying the Metroplex petition io nullify the approval of the
reduction of the capital stock of the Parent Company (see Note 11). The CA sustained the ruling
of the SEC, thus Metroplex filed a peiition for review with the SC. Asal March 53,2015, the

Supreme Court has yet to resolve this petition.

However, as discussed in Note 11, the cancellation of the Swap Agreement was implemented
following the Parent Company’s filing to the SEC of a Notice of Withdrawal of the Memorandum
of Appeal filed on June 20, 2013.

25. Events after the Reporting Period

On March 5, 2015, the Company's BOD approved the declaration of cash dividends of B0.022 per
ghare amounting 1o approximately £700.0 million to sharehoiders of record as at March 20, 2015.

Payments will be made on April 17, 2015.
26. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
The following are the noncash investing and financing activities in 2013 and 2012
2013 2012

Transfer of developed lots from Belle on account

(see Note 19} R65,501,280 P
Receipt of liguidating dividend (see Note 13 - 108,700,000
Offsetting of subscription payments for Belle shares

- 42,851,879

againgi advances 10 Belle

1n 2014, the Company has no principal noncash activity.

IR



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES )
PASIG CITY, METRO MANILA ) S.8.

CERTIFICATION

A. BAYANI K. TAN, of leéél age, Filipino, with office address at 2704 East Tower,
Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila,
after having been sworn to in accordance with law, does hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected and incumbent Corporate Secretary of PREMIUM
LEISURE CORP., (the “Corporation™), a corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the Philippines, with principal office at 5/F Tower A, Two E-Com Center, Palm Coast Avenue.
Mall of Asia Complex, Pasay City;

2. Based on the information provided to the Corporation by the members of its
Board of Directors and its principal executive officers, none of said members of the Board of
Directors and principal executive officers of the Corporation are presently employed by any
office or agency of the Philippine Governlnent. 5
o

IN ATTESTATION OF THE ABOVE, this Certificate was signed thm‘}ié}
20135 at Pasig City, Metro Manila,

A. BAYANI K. TAN
Corporate Secretary

0 ’Lﬁ'\%
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me, thisw\?\ éa'y of 2015 at Pasig
City, Metro Manila, affiant having exhibited to me his SSS No. 06-0757282-1 and TIN 102-
054-041. i
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